Editorial: 

IS THIS YOUR SOLDIER’S CODE MURDERING UNARMED MEN

The violence of the soldiers normally are impersonal in conflicts, but the disproportionate use of force by law enforcing officials (LEO) against the protestors in J&K, manifest the vindictiveness on their part, thus making it personal. Last year, during Amaranth land transfer issue, over sixty protesters were killed, hundreds injured and many faced amputations. This month over the gory incident of double rape and murder of girl and a woman at Shopian, which acted as a spark in the state reeling under turmoil and turbulence, conflict and conflagration and made people to take to streets in every nook and corner of the valley. To quell the widespread protests the state uses indiscriminate and ruthless force. The LEO formally meant to maintain law and order, or the rule of law have become law unto themselves; behaving like pseudo psychopaths. They stormed into the houses, damage public property and indulged in vandalism, simply, to convey the message that the LEO are above the law and have the authority to operate with impunity. All canons of civilized war are thrown to winds with the result that even the passersby, standers-by not part of any protests have received grave injuries by teargas shells or bullets fired indiscriminately, and finally few succumbed in hospitals. 

No law allows disproportionate use of force on the citizens at least. Even the Municipal laws emphasize restraint and minimum use of force. The UN Code of Conduct for Law Enforcement Officials Basic Principle on use of Force and Firearms by LEO (adopted by 8th UN Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders) has stipulated that violence is permissible when strictly necessary, otherwise, all non-violent means are to be adopted and violence is to be used in self-defense. Since the UN Code of Conduct are not binding on Indian state (even the International Humanitarian Law which India signed and ratify are also not implemented), but the Municipal laws and the judgements made by the Apex Court from time to time is at least binding on the Indian state, but they least honour their own laws and procedures. 
The Indian police had a long history of committing excesses, be it provisional armed constabulary of UP, Delhi Police Cell  or Gujarat police. Long back after Bhagalpure Blinding case in which police had punctured the eyes of detainees in order to ensure complete blindness, which shocked the Indian civil society and also the international community, it was expected that there would be a change. But nothing has changed. The modus operandi of the Indian police has not changed still there are custodial deaths, fake encounters in Naxalite areas, with Salwa Judum operating with impunity. It has become almost the way of life, only few incidences get the attention from corporate Indian media. The institutions meant to protect human rights have only exposed themselves as helpless and mute spectators. But the situation in Kashmir is different, the non-state subject LEO are from different parts, cultures and religions having an additional edge during operations that they are serving the Indian nation and have moral, political and judicial impunity at their back. In the Muslim majority state where people are treated like subjects and not citizens, they are operating with vengeance. There are other facts behind it. In a conflict zone like Kashmir where army, police and other LEO are fighting  a mindset.  More than five thousand Indian army personnel have died, thousands injured which have not become a public issue as human life do not count and thousands are suffering from different sorts of trauma, fatigue, depressions and other forms of mental disorders with the result that a large number of the soldiers including CRPF personnel committed suicide and indulge in fratricidal killings. And there is no light at the end of the tunnel. Excessive working hours, lack of discipline, lack of human rights education (which we are not sure would really work) and above all the officers who are increasingly having tilt towards right wing Hindutva ideology has culminated into the vengeful attitude. 

Even an independent observer is convinced that LEO are not reactive to situation what was justified by govt. in Gujarat after genocide as Newtonian reaction to Godra incident. It is evident that the force is inflicted to “break the will” of the people, “teaching them a lesson” and “inculcated sense of helplessness” amongst the population. That is why the CRPF and state police at different occasions have displayed sadistic attitude by stopping the ambulances carrying injured, or pregnant women to hospitals so that the injured should bleed to death and pregnant women deliver in ambulances or stopping the fire tenders to extinguish the fire caused due to militancy related incidents, or using the civilians as human shield while neutralizing militants or forcing people to patrol, or dig the suspected places at highways and different places to locate the IEDs or other explosives. All it manifests that in Kashmir no law, procedure or international norm is respected, the mind set of the soldier responds to any slight incident according to his own belief and prejudice. 

It would be wrong to say that disproportionate force is only used against the non-combatants / protesters since the conflict has started. The Indian army and paramilitary followed by police particularly SOG have even exceeded the powers vested to them under AFSPA for example the AFSPA is being assailed as draconian legislation. Even a fig leaf is not required and with the result that tens of thousands of people have got killed, thousands disappeared and severely tortured. Once an army official candidly stated to the 
Editor that “force and powers one has to use and the end will always justify the means. Morality and laws can wait. It has worked in other parts of India, why cannot it work here.” This is the reality of an officer who is on field and risking his life not an academia. So questioning the modus operandi in real sense is a moral issue, as we are living in an era where code of conduct in conflict situation has been universally recognized. It is equally binding on the Indian state, which takes high moral position internationally. So exposing contradictions of state is needful. The laws of nature which once considered the only permanent laws have changed like peace and tranquility, which are not the laws of nature. Peace has become modern invention. The doctrine means justify the end is no more valid alibi in civilized concept. It is a complex issue but without going into the academic debate the reality is that brutalization which has remain part of history through ages in not acceptable in the present era that is why history may not are on our side but the modern civilized norms are. That makes victims more stronger once they morally isolate the state, so that they are questioned by the international community “is this your soldier’s code murdering unarmed men.”
FATHER OF THREE TORTURED TO DEATH BY SOG

On May 18, Manzoor Ahmad Beigh, 40, son of Abdul Ahad resident of Beigh Mohalla Aluchi Bagh, a transport broker by profession, was allegedly tortured to death in SOG camp Cargo, Srinagar after he was held in connection of some business matter. The killing triggered strong resentment and protests in the entire Srinagar city. People resorted to strong protest demonstrations demanding action against the guilty SOG men. Under public pressure the Deputy Commissioner Srinagar ordered an inquiry into the incident and police launched an investigation. 

Shortly after the incident a reporter of The Informative Missive visited the victim family and talked to them regarding the incident.

Mushtaq Ahmad, elder brother of the deceased said: “In the morning of May 18 at about 9:00 am Manzoor left his house along with his daughter to drop her in Amira Kadal Higher Secondary School. After leaving her in school, he according to his friends was called on his cell phone by them. His friends, Mohammad Sultan and Sameer Ahmad along with Manzoor had together gone to the Police Station Channapora because his friends had to discuss some of their issue in the police station. Meanwhile, in the police station, Manzoor had received a call from some SOG personnel of Cargo camp, who told Manzoor to visit the camp. Manzoor had informed his friends about the call and then his friends told him that they would accompany him to the camp. The trio visited the cargo camp.”

He added: “At about 11:00 am once they had reached at the gate of camp only Manzoor was allowed to move inside while Mohammad Sultan and Sameer were asked to wait at the gate. Half-an-hour passed when Manzoor hadn’t come out then Mohammad Sultan left. Whereas according to Sameer he waited there for one-and-half hour but Manzoor was not set free. Then Sameer had sought the intervention of one of his known persons who had some influence in SOG camp. After informing this person, Sameer left for his home for lunch. The person after visiting camp called on Sameer and informed him that Manzoor was taken to Ramzana hospital, Gogji Bagh in an unconscious state.” 

According to the victim family at about 1:30 pm after Sameer came to know that Mazoor was taken to Ramzana hospital. He had called Mohammad Sultan and both of them had rushed to the Ramzana hospital. In the hospital they had been told by the hospital staff that Manzoor was in critical condition and had been shifted to the SMHS hospital in an auto rickshaw. While moving to the SMHS hospital Sameer and Mohammad Sultan went through Mazoor’s brother’s Shop and informed his brothers Mushtaq Ahmad and Abdul Majid about Manzoor’s condition.  

“First Mohammad Sultan and Sameer reached SMSH hospital. Then my younger brother Abdul Majid and my brother-in-law Abdul Qayoom rushed to the hospital. On reaching the hospital they found Manzoor dead on a stretcher. There were apparent torture marks on his body. His armpits were bloated; there were bruises on the right side of his hip and there was round mark around his neck. It seemed as if he had also been strangulated”, stated Mushtaq Ahmad.

Mushtaq further said: “some eyewitnesses at Ramzana Hospital told us that Manzoor was brought to the hospital in a private car in which three persons were boarded in. One among the three persons had taken Manzoor inside the hospital whereas the two persons left away. When Manzoor was not admitted in the hospital by the hospital authorities sensing police case, the person had taken him out and had stopped an Auto rickshaw bearing registration No. JKO1A-1629. The auto driver knew Manzoor well and he ferried both the person and Manzoor to SMHS hospital. According to the auto driver the person who had accompanied Manzoor to the SMHS hospital escaped after he made an excuse of taking out a registration ticket for him. The person escaped was the one who got Manzoor detained and tortured for extracting some of his business money from him.”

The family members further added that when hundreds of people gathered at SMHS hospital including Deputy Commissioner and SSP, Srinagar. To avert law and order problem police took Manzoor’s dead body to the Police Control Room (PCR). In the hospital the Deputy Commissioner ordered an inquiry into the killing and appointed the Additional District Development Commissioner, Srinagar, M. Y. Zargar as Inquiry Officer. He ordered that the inquiry report will be submitted within a week time. 

Mohammad Sultan, a neighbor of slain Manzoor said: “The autopsy of Manzoor was conducted at PCR by a team of doctors appointed by Principal, Government Medical College, Srinagar and Chief Medical Officer, Srinagar. The autopsy report revealed that Manzoor was tortured to death. Next day, after the preliminary investigations the inspector of Cargo camp was suspended. Even police stated to the media that Manzoor Ahmad, a second-hand car dealer, was called by the SOG officer to SOG camp as he owed Rs 40,000 to some person who took SOG’s intervention to recover the money. After calling Manzoor to the camp he was tortured to death by the accused officer.”

According to Mushtaq Ahmad, police initially arrested three persons including Manzoor’s two friends and the auto driver but the main accused who got SOG’s backing is still absconding.

Manzoor has three children and all of them are studying in secondary classes. He was the sole bread earner in his family. 

Manzoors wife Zeba, 38, bewailed and said, “Who will take care of my children now and who will make their study possible and how their future get secured? How can we compensate the debts which my husband had borrowed from different financers? Even my husband had huge sum of money in his business but we don’t know who owes money to him? Ours everything is lost. I don’t understand how can I sustain my family and get my children’s education possible. Our lives have been ruined by the callous SOG men.”

Zeba added, “Last year my husband got life threats from his business associate over a transaction issue of Rs.1,40,000. Then to save his life my husband took Rs. 1,50,000 from his brothers, as the share from his parental property and paid to the person who was threatening him to kill. However, now we don’t have complete share from his parental property. If I would have some of my husbands saving I would have kept that for my children’s future but alas! We have nothing. The SOG men have shattered our lives and hopes entirely.” 

AUTO-RICKSHAW DRIVER SHOT DEAD 

On May 29, unidentified gunman shot dead an auto rickshaw driver from point blank range in Srinagar’s downtown area Lal Bazar. The gunmen after shooting the driver fled the spot. The deceased has been identified as, Mohammad Shaban Gora, 35, son Abdul Ahad resident of Anzimarg Khanyar Srinagar. The killing shook the people of Khanyar area who assembled outside the police station, Khanyar and demanded investigation into the matter.  Police station Lal Bazaar filed FIR, vide No. 44/2009. U/S - 302 RPC and 7/27 A. 

To document the incident a reporter of The Informative Missive visited the native place of the victim and talked to his family members regarding the incident. 

According to the elder brother and younger brother of the deceased, both are running a general provision store near the Sheeshgari Mohalla, Auto-Stand where from Mohammad Shaban was operating his rickshaw bearing registration No. 1351/JKO1. At about 6:00 pm Mohammad Shaban was in the auto-stand waiting for his turn for passengers, meanwhile, he had informed his brothers at their shop that he will come back from home after having a cup of tea. Instead of going to home, he had gone to a tea stall near Gousia Hospital, Khanyar where he had a cup of tea and was also seen talking to some persons at the stall.

Mohammad Sidiq Gora, 33, younger brother of the deceased told The Informative Missive: “Mohammad Shaban had ordered tea maker that he quickly needs a cup of tea as some passengers were waiting for him at Sheesgari Mohalla. I was sitting on my shop, which is located at the entrance to the Sheesgari Mohalla. In the meantime, I found my brother driving his rickshaw towards Sheesgari Mohalla, but at that moment I didn’t find any one on the passenger seat. After 10 minutes at about 6:20 pm he returned and passed through my shop with three passengers on board. I tried to see the passengers but couldn’t saw them, as they had hid their faces and he drove towards Babademb, Khanyar.”
He added: “At about 8:00 pm, a cop in civvies from police intelligence wing in police station Khanyar came to my shop. He took me aside and informed that Mohammad Shaban has received a bullet and is lying with the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF). The cop called up the Munshi, Mushtaq Ahmad of Khanyar police station who asked for my brother’s cell number. I gave him his number and also tried to call him myself, but the phone was switched off. I, immediately, closed my shop and a Gypsy car from police station Khanyar appeared and took me to the police station. The SHO, Nisar Bakshi of the police station told me that Shaban has been shot dead at 7:05 pm at Sikh Bagh, Lal Bazar by some unknown gunmen and his body is lying in Police Control Room (PCR), Srinagar. I was shocked and ran towards home and informed my family about the incident. All our relatives thronged our house and we rushed to PCR to collect his dead body.”

The family members complained that police at PCR kept them waiting till late night. They (officials at PCR) according to the relatives of the deceased delayed handing over of the dead body in order to avert any protest demonstration or any kind of law order problem in Khanyar area. Eventually, the dead body was handed over to the family at about 12:15am. 

Mohammad Sidiq grumbled, “Although, the dead body was handed over to us late but police did not conduct post mortem. And the SHO told us that it is better to take the dead body to home, otherwise, the body would be taken for autopsy, which will destroy it. Finally, we took his dead body to our home without any examination from police. On receiving his body we found that he was shot on the left side of his skull and the bullet had pierced out from the right side of his skull. We kept the body at home for the whole night. Next day, in the morning, we buried it at about 10:00am in our native graveyard.”

“My brother was innocent and I don’t understand why he was killed? So far police is reluctant to initiate any investigation into the killing. Police recovered a half burnt Gold Flake cigarette and the shell of pistol bullet from the spot. After about a week of my brother’s killing, we visited police station, Lal Bazar to retrieve the auto-rickshaw. While examining the auto rickshaw there were snacks on the passenger’s seat, which were probably being taken by the murderers. It is pity that police did not even bother to take the snacks and its wrapper for investigation. Police is dormant and does not take any interest to investigate the killing of my brother. We gave few names to police whom we suspect behind the killing, but police neither arrested nor interrogated them. Despite our incessant pleas police remain unmoved,” Mohammad Sidiq revealed.

Bibiji (65), frail and sick mother of Shaban, grieved, “On the third day of my son’s death, we erected a stone nameplate on his grave, but it was smashed into pieces spotted by us on the fourth day, when people gathered at graveyard to pay obeisance. The nameplate was left inside the grass of the graveyard. We handed over all the pieces of the stone plate to police for examination but they did not do anything. Even my beloved son’s watch, cell phone with sim card and rupees 2400 were lying with police. But after seeking release order from court they returned the watch and rupees 2400 but the cell phone is still with them.” 

According to family members, Mohammad Shaban had been associated with Al-Umar Commandos, a militant outfit in 1990 and had remained active for about six months. He had dissociated himself from the outfit after he was arrested by troopers of BSF from Bamabademb, Khanyar. He was booked under PSA between 1991 and 1992. He had served a detention of 15 months in different jails, mostly in Kot Bhalwal Jail, Jammu. After 15 months of detention his detention was quashed and he was set free. After his release he had completely shun the path of militancy and was living a normal life. 

Shabans sister said: “Few months after his release he was again picked up by the troopers of BSF and was detained in Islamia College of Science and Commerce, Hawal, Srinagar. There he was tortured severely and his leg was broken.  That time he was released after one day in the declining condition. We admitted him in the Bone and Joint hospital, Srinagar, where he was on complete bed rest for 4-5 months and he was under consistent medical care. Third and the last time, he was arrested at Khankah Shrine during a crackdown and was detained for about 8 months in PAPA-2 camp. After severe torture of eight months he was released.”

She added: “when he was recurrently arrested by the troopers, he migrated to Tral, Pulwama and opened a wholesale provision store there. He started to run a shop and was living there peacefully. But, unfortunately, upon a time in 2005, one of his customers Mohammad Shaban who owed him Rs. 70000/- conspired with some gunmen to shot him. And the gunmen fired upon his leg. Shaban had seized the horse of his customer for retrieving his money from him. The said customer in return blamed Shaban of having illicit affairs with his wife and sought some militant’s intervention into the matter. The militants had taken Shaban near to a stream and asked him about the allegation. Meanwhile, one of gunmen had shot a bullet on his leg from the backside, which injured him critically. In the critical condition, he was rushed to Srinagar by some of his neighboring shopkeepers. After the incident, he never visited Tral again fearing threat to his life. He even left the shop and let go all his money which he had invested in the business there.”

The family further said: “after he recovered from the bullet injury he started to run an auto rickshaw. From last few years neither he got any problem nor was he arrested or harassed by any agency. Last year in the month of June, he went to Madras with his brother who runs a Kashmir Arts shop there. Shaban returned back in the month of April, 2009. In the month of December his brother married him to a Madrasi girl. The couple came to Kashmir in the month of April this year. After Shaban’s killing his wife got a severe mental shock and she went under depression. For her safety we sent her back to her parental house.”  

“Despite disclosing all the details and happenings to police, they did not take any interest in investigation the matter of my brother’s killing. We want that the perpetrators be brought to the justice but unfortunately police seems to be reluctant in doing so,” the family said. 

POLICE VERSION

The SSP Srinagar, Afhadul Mujtaba described the killing as a criminal act. “The driver was shot in the back. The modus operandi has been same as was in case during earlier such incidents,” he said.

Shaban is the third auto driver to be killed in city. “Unlike earlier instances when the auto drivers were strangulated to death, this time the criminals have used fire arm,” he said, adding, “The investigations have been launched and the guilty persons would be arrested soon.” 

POLICE TEARGAS SHELL KILLS STUDENT 

On May 26, seventeen-year-old, Mohammad Ayoub, a 10 class student of Gandarpora, Eidgah, Srinagar succumbed to his injuries he allegedly received by a tea gas shell fired by state police. He died at SKIMS where he was admitted for five days. Mohammad Ayoub, a 10th standard student of Gandarpora, Eidgah, Srinagar succumbed to his injuries at SKIMS, Soura Srinagar. The deceased wounded critically on May 22, after police had allegedly fired a tear gas shell hitting his head from very close range at Rajourikadal of downtown area, Srinagar. The youth got injured in post Friday prayers protests. 

The news of Aarif’s death infuriated people of the whole downtown area. The men, women and youth thronged the streets and resorted to strong protest demonstrations. The protesters were demanding action against the guilty. The protests continued for two days and a complete shutdown was observed in the entire Eidgah area. During the two days protests at least 30 persons were inured in clashed between police and protesters at different places. 
A few days after Aarif’s death, the reporter of The Informative Missive visited the area and talked to the family members of the victim. 

Muzamil, elder sister of the deceased Arif stated: “On Friday May 22, Arif performed noon prayers in a local mosque. After prayers he went to his mother’s grave and offered Fatia there. From the graveyard he came back and watched television in the room up to 3 pm. At 3:15pm he left for tuition to his aunt’s house at Kawdara, Rajourikadal. He was being taught by his cousin. After tuition, at about 4:45pm he had left for computer institute in Rajouri Kadal area. As soon as he had gone out on the road from a lane, a police cop standing near a police Gypsy vehicle on the roadside fired a tear smoke shell targeting my brother. The shell struck Arif on the left side of forehead and wounded him critically.”

She added: “Once he was hit by the shell he had fell unconscious on the road and was bleeding profusely. The eyewitnesses informed us that the time Arif was hit no protests or stone pelting was going at the spot. For few minutes after he was hit he was left untouched at the spot and by that time he lost enormous blood. Then some local youth of the area had picked him and had rushed him to SMHS hospital, Srinagar. In SMHS hospital he was not treated because he was in most critical condition. He was only bandaged there and was shifted to SKIMS (Sher-i-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences), Soura, where he was operated upon by a neurosurgeon as it was an emergency case. The shell has damaged his head badly and caused severe brain trauma to him. After surgery he fell into coma and remained in critical condition consecutively for four days. He was kept on a respirator because his respiratory system was not functioning properly. After continuous treatment eventually doctors on May 26 at about 2pm told us that Arif passed away. The told us that his brain was damaged severely and due the condition he could not survive.”  

According to the locals of Gandarproa area, On May 26 at about 3 pm when the dead body of Arif reached home the situation in the area got tense. People came out on the streets and held protest demonstrations. The agitated youth carried Arif’s dead body in the form of a procession and marched towards martyr graveyard Eidgah. After performing his last rites he was buried in the martyr graveyard Eidgah.  

Nazir Ahmad uncle of the deceased said: “After burying Arif, the local youth were continuously protesting in the area and clashes were going on between police and the protesting youth. Meanwhile, a deputy commandant, R K Tandey of 158 - battalion CRPF was driving his car through Gandarpora. At Gandarpora chowk youth had held a protest. The said commandant along with his others troopers swung into action and started to beat up all the locals. The CRPF troopers resorted to aerial firing and extreme teargas shelling. The troopers even fired some of the shells into the compound of our house, where all mourners were staying. The shelling caused reign of terror in whole of our area. The troopers damaged the window panes of many houses, damaged vehicles, beat up the house inmates and also beat up the mourners, who were visiting our house.”   

Arif’s elder sister further said: “We are orphans. We lost our mother when Arif was 2 ½ years old. Since then we have been nourished by our father but due to our ill-fate, four years back my father’s right arm got fractured after an accident and since then he did not recovered and presently his arm is pinned. From last four years my father couldn’t go to work. It was Arif who was occasionally working as labor in order to support his study as well as to run the family. But the callous cops snatched his support from us.”

According to Arif’s grandmother, a local eyewitness of Mirwaiz Manzil Rajouri Kadal told us and also stated to the media that Arif was neither pelting stones nor he was part of the protest demonstrations. He was going towards his computer institute. But we don’t understand why police fired him. 

Police denied that the youth had been injured due to tear smoke shelling. “We don’t know whether he was injured by a stone or tear gas shell. Doctors alone can say that,” the superintendent of police, City (North), Abdul Wahid, told media, adding, “All we know is that there were protests and one person was injured.”

YOUTH’S CHIN BLOWN AWAY

May 5: A shopkeeper was critically injured at Kanikadal in downtown city when a tear gas shell fired by police hit him, blowing his chin away, during police action on protestors. The people were protesting against arrest of a youth this morning. The shell hit Sajad Ahmad Sofi of Kanikadal at his shop. He underwent a preliminary surgery in the Dental College where doctors said he had to be operated upon again within two days.

 “His mandible is fractured and he has also lost four teeth. We have fixed the fracture in the preliminary surgery but he needs a second surgery soon,” the head of department of Oral Surgery at the College, Dr Aijaz Ahmad, told media.

The protests broke out when hundreds of people, including men, women and children, took to streets demanding the release of one youth arrested in the morning on charges of involvement in protests. However, eyewitnesses said, police swung into action resorting to intense baton charge and tear gas shelling on the protesters.

“They thrashed the protesters and fired several tear gas canisters. Several people received injuries in the police action,” the eyewitnesses said. They alleged that the arrested youth was framed although he was not involved in protests.

GIRL DIES IN ‘ENCOUNTER’

ARMY KILLED HER, ALLEGE LOCALS
May 12: A 17-year-old girl was killed in an “exchange of fire” between militants and troops in Kishtwar district, officials said. However, locals denounced the official version and accused the army of gunning her down.”Policeman and troopers of 26-Rashtriya Rifles cordoned off Kanow Patanzi village and launched searches, officials said.
They claimed the militants hiding in the area, opened fire on the search party which was retaliated triggering an encounter.”A girl Amina, 17, daughter of Muhammad Ibrahim was caught in the crossfire and was hit by a bullet. She died on the spot,”officials said, adding,”A militant Muhammad Ishaq was also injured in the gun battle but he managed to escape.A massive search operation has been launched to track him down.”
As the word about Amina’s death spread in the area locals took to the streets and staged a protest.”She was killed by the army,”they alleged.Later top officials reached the spot and assured the protesters that matter would be probed.
The civil administration has announced compensation for the kin of the girl.”The residents of village Bounjuwan protested over the killing of a girl in an encounter on which the administration announced a compensation of Rs 1 lakh for the kin of the slain woman,”sources said.

Deputy Commissioner Kishtwar Guldev Raj Bhagat however, claimed that the compensation was announced as the girl was killed in cross firing during an encounter.”Under the government scheme, the civilians killed in militancy operations are compensated and thus an announcement of Rs 1 lakh has been made, Bhagat said.

On May 13, State government ordered a probe into the killing of Amina .Following massive protests by the locals the Divisional Commissioner, Jammu, Pawan Kotwal, directed the deputy commissioner to conduct a magisterial probe into the incident and submit the report to the government. Ruling out that she was a militant, inspector general of police, Jammu zone, K Rajendra said, “We have nothing on record to prove her as militant.”
FRESH AUTOPSY OF SHOPKEER'S BODY SOUGHT

MY HUSBAND DIED IN BSF CAMP: KARNAH WOMAN

May 31: A widow of Dhani, a village near Line of Control (LoC), has appealed to the Chief Minister to order exhumation and fresh autopsy of her husband who died in the headquarters of Border Security Force (BSF) Tanghdar on May 9, 2009 “under mysterious circumstances.”

 
Azizi Jan, the widow, said on morning of May 9 her husband Manga Sheikh (45) was at his shop when two men, Muhammad Shafi of Hajitra and Alam-Din of Sudhpora, working for 67 battalion of BSF, came to the shop and asked him to accompany them to Tangdhar.

 “They said they have some work there. But at 5 PM we received a message from local BSF camp that my husband Manga Sheikh had developed some health problem and was admitted in Sub District hospital Tangdhar. When I reached the hospital I was stunned to see that they had conducted his post-mortem and his body was lying on a bed. They had not even waited for family member before conducting post-mortem,” Azizi said.

 Manga Sheikh is survived by four young daughters and Azizi, who said she had to leave her daughters alone at home before coming to meet officials in Tanghdar. 

 “My husband has become victim of some conspiracy. When I approached the SDM (sub divisional magistrate) of Karnah and the SHO concerned for investigations of the death they asked me not to highlight the case and compromise with the BSF. Even the BMO (block medical officer) said the same thing. I doubt the postmortem report conducted in our absence by hospital authorities. The persons working for BSF who took my husband are influential and in league with BSF authorities; they want to alter the report,” Azizi said.

 She has made representation to SSP Crime Branch, SP Kupwara and Deputy Commissioner Kupwara, urging them to exhume his husband’s body so that the case is reinvestigated. 

 
“Now I have pinned my hopes on Omar Abdullah and DG Police to pass necessary orders to exhume the body of my husband and conduct the fresh autopsy so that the case is reinvestigated,” Azizi said. The Block Medical Office Tanghdar in the death report of Manga Sheikh says: “Apparent cause of death is cardio respiratory arrest of the deceased.” 

 The SP Kupwara Uttam Chand, however, told media that from “preliminary investigation it was learnt that Manga Sheikh was an alcoholic/drunkard and he died of taking excessive alcohol. We have registered a case under 174 CRPC (suspicious death) and investigation is going on.”

APDP CONTEST DGP (CID) STATEMENT
May 28: The Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) has taken strong exception to DGP (CID), Ashok Bhan’s recent statement wherein he stated that no custodial disappearance had been reported since the past few years. 

An APDP spokesperson while describing the DGP’s statement misleading and far from truth said 298 cases of enforced disappearance had been reported since 2002.

The spokesperson drew DGP’s attention to the statement of former Minister of Consumer Affairs and Public Distribution, Taj Mohi-ud-Din wherein he stated that 22 persons had disappeared after arrest since 2007 to this time. Taj Mohi-ud-Din gave these details while answering a question on the floor of the Legislative Assembly on September 1, 2007. 

The spokesperson said, the ministers and legislators in the process of contesting APDP figures had been issuing contradictory statements about custodial disappearance since 1996. The spokesman said that the statements were aimed at misleading the international community. 

The spokesperson said that 8000 to 10,000 persons had disappeared after arrest in Jammu Kashmir since 1989. The APDP has repeatedly demanded appointment of an enquiry commission to probe all disappearances. Today APDP reiterates its demand. If the government claims are based on truth let it order a probe. Let the truth prevail.

TORTURE TESTIMONIALS

Name: Ali Mohammad Bandey

Age: 48

Education: 

Occupation: Farmer

Civilian/Militant: Civilian (no association with militants)

Association: With earlier protests on human rights violations

Religion: Islam

Nationality: Kashmiri/Indian

Address: Handwara

Date of Interview: 14th April, 2009

August, 2008. Ali Bandey was coming back from the mosque when he heard the Army firing at civilians. He was beaten by the Army (56 RR officials) in the protest that followed after the firing. He was taken to the hospital with the other injured people. At the hospital, there was an agitation against the incident especially with the reference to the injured people. To control the crowd, the police used force as well as tear gas. Ali Bandey was further beaten up in this process. The police used gaze rods which are transparent and cannot be seen especially by media. Ali says that there were about twenty-thirty people in the hospital. During the police firing, he was shot in the hand. The doctors just dressed his hand with some tape. For the rest of the night, he was in the hospital. The next day morning, he went on his own to Srinagar to get treated on his own expense. Till date, his injury comes in the way of his work and he has still not completely recovered from it.

Ali believes that the reason for persecution was that they are oppressed people.

Name: Ghulam Mustafa Bandey

Age: 35

Education: NA

Occupation: Government Service/Fisheries

Civilian/Militant: Civilian (no association with militants)

Association: Not affiliated with any organisation

Religion: Islam

Nationality: Kashmiri/Indian

Address: Handwara

Date of Interview: 14th April, 2009

On August 5, 2008 there was curfew in the valley during which the military had warned the people of Handwara region to stay inside their houses. After the daily Namaaz (prayers) at the masjid, Ghulam Mustafa’s family heard a child’s wail, who was being beaten allegedly by the armed forces. The neighbours had already gathered and were raising slogans against the forces. Ghulam’s uncle, hearing the commotion, came out of the house to check what was going on. During this time, the army had started using gunfire and teargas shells against the people. In this process, a stray bullet hit Ghulam’s uncle in the stomach. Ghulam and few relatives transported him to the district hospital with their bare hands. There were immediate agitations against this incident in the neighbourhood and near the hospital. The entire family reached the hospital and saw the police trying to control the crowds. Teargas was the first phase of the police’s attack on people. They then used force and lathis to control the crowd. In this process Ghulam Mustafa was also beaten up by the police and he was injured on his shoulders. He then heard that his uncle was to be transported to Srinagar and he was to accompany his uncle’s family, however he was detained in the hospital. From there he and five others were taken to the SOG camp in Handwara. The police took of all their clothes and their hands were bound by ropes and handcuffs. Ghulam also mentions that there were 20 others already in the camp. The police continued to beat them with iron and gaze rods for four to five hours. They were forced to lie down and were beaten again by three policemen at a time. They were given only breaks for the time taken for three other police to replace the ones who were doing the beating.

After the death of Ghulam’s uncle, there was a political pressure on the police so they stopped beating him and the others in custody. The police were forced to release him and his family. They were promised that there would be no case against them. But fifteen days later, they found out that there was one case against them in the court. He was charged under Sections 188, 148, 149, 353, 333 and 307 of RPC. 

He received no medical treatment in custody. But a doctor was asked to come home (as he wasn’t even able to move). Ghulam says that at times, the pain attacks him in his private parts when he sleeps. He had take leave for 10-15 days from his work after which he returned. Currently, there is an ongoing case against him. He says he feels betrayed that whatever was done to him by the police has been used as allegations against him in the charge sheet. 

KASHMIRI ARMY MAN DETAINED IN DELHI
May 1: The family members of missing Army man Showkat Ahmed Bhat of Aloosa Bandipora apprehend that he might be framed in false case after reports that he has been detained in Delhi by security agencies.Showkat who had been working in the army from the last six years was missing from March 17 when he left his home to rejoin his duty. His parents were informed that he was arrested from South Delhi by Intelligence Bureau (IB).  

“We were informed by Bandipora based IB personal that our son has been arrested from South Delhi some days back. However, they didn’t say how he has been arrested,” said Showkat’s brother, Javaid Ahmed adding, “We are apprehensive that Indian agencies will try to label .our brother as a terrorist.”

Showkat was the only Kashmiri working in Electric Mechanical Engineering (EME) branch based in Bujh Gujarat under belt number 146624823 MT.He had come home for vacation on February 9. He was supposed to report back on March 21.

Showkat’s mother, Hanifa said, “Before leaving home on March 17 to rejoin his duty, Showkat told us that he is going to participate in a special course which will take some time. However, we received a letter dated April 9 from army that reached us on April 17 stating that Showkat had not reported for duty.”

Showkat’s father, Abdul Rehman said, “Our son is innocent and is dedicated to his duty. We fear for the safety of our son. We want to meet him but don’t know how to reach there.”

Rehman was summoned by officers of the Army camp located near District Hospital Bandipora. “I was told that my son was picked up by militants, which is totally baseless,” he said, adding, “We fear that the Indian Agencies might frame our son on false charges which can prove fatal to him.” 

Meanwhile, officials in Bandipora based office of IB confirmed that Showkat has been arrested from South Delhi. “Showkat has said that he was picked up by militants in Kashmir. The matter is being investigated,” they said.Showkat’s parents have appealed that they should be allowed to meet him to know the reality.

PORTER’S CUSTODIAL DISAPPEARANCE

ARMY IS HARASSING US: FAMILY

May 8: The anti-army protests rocked Kupwara Township over the alleged custodial disappearance of an army porter. The agitators were protesting against what they termed the custodial disappearance of porter, Mumtaz Ahmad Mir, 22, son of Alam Din Mir of Kani Bahak, Haihama.The protestors later staged a sit-in in front of SP Kupwara’s office and demanded the whereabouts of the missing porter. Mumtaz’s family accused army of harassing them to withdraw the case against 23 Punjab regiment
Mumtaz’s brother, Gulam Hassan Mir said that his brother was working as a porter for 23 Punjab from past five years. “He has gone missing in the custody of 23 Punjab Regiment posted at D 4 Lushdut area near Line of Control in Kupwara,” Mir alleged. He feared that the troopers might have killed him in a fake encounter by labelling him as a foreign militant. 

Shamsuddin, the elder brother of the missing porter said the army is said to have approached the police station Kupwara on May 1 and registered a missing report. “This has been done to hide the reality and befool the people. We took up the matter with SP Kupwara, who deputed a police team to army post at Lushdut to ascertain the facts,” Shamsuddin said. 

He said that the troopers at the post prevented the police team and porters from moving forward. They told the police team that Mumtaz would have crossed LoC to reach Pakistan. “This is a white lie. He was working for army from five years and might have been killed by army,” he alleged.Mumtaz was the lone bread earner for his large family. He is survived by five brothers - Shamsudin, Mohammad Yousuf, Gulam Hassan, Bashir Ahmad, Mohammad Shafi a seventh grade student, two sisters and his elderly mother.  

The whole population is up in arms against the army. “If police fails to trace out Mumtaz, every one of us will ensure poll boycott in Kupwara. We will go on an indefinite strike in Kupwara Chowk”, said an angry protestor Alam Din.

SP Kupwara Uttam Chand told media that police has filed a missing report but no headway has been achieved so far. “The porter has not disappeared but is missing,” he added.  
On May 11, Mumtaz’s family accused army of harassing them to withdraw the case against 23 Punjab regiment. They also alleged that they were warned from raising the issue in media.

Muhammad Yousuf, elder brother of Mumtaz told media that a caller identifying himself as Colonel Choudhary from Delhi asked the family “to compromise with army” over the issue.Yousuf quoted Choudhary saying,”Fouj ke saath compromise karo,apko naukri aur paisa milega (Compromise with army, you will be benefited with job and money).”
Yousuf added that the officer also threatened the family of dire consequences if they failed to compromise with army.Showkat Ahmad Khan who had earlier spoken to media during a protest demonstration demanding release of Mumtaz has also been threatened over phone. In this case the caller identified himself as Major warning Khan not to highlight the issue in media if he wants his well being.
”Army should have consoled us but unfortunately we are being threatened not to utter even a word on the issue,”Yousuf said. The family has demanded immediate intervention of Chief Minister in the matter.
“Police says that we should not agitate to know the whereabouts of our brother until elections are over,”Mushtaq, Mumtaz’s brother said. He added that his aged mother was seriously ill and repeatedly called for her disappeared son as her last wish.

Citing phenomenon of encounter killings in the valley, his family members said that since Mumtaz had raised long hair they fear the troopers might have killed him some fake encounter to label him as a foreign militant.

CRPF BEATS MENTALLY SICK YOUTH IN BANDIPORA
LOCALS ALLEGE TROOPS WERE PLANNING FAKE ENCOUNTER
May 7: Paramilitary CRPF men allegedly beat a mentally retarded youth to pulp in Bandipora after forcing him to wear an army jacket. CRPF men beat a mentally retarded youth Muhammad Sayeed Wani son of Abdul Gani Wani of Dachigam after forcing him to wear an army jacket at Aloosa Chowk, an eyewitness told media.

“The retarded youth was playing with pebbles on the roadside. I saw a CRPF vehicle approaching him. They started beating him on the spot and dragged him toward their vehicle,” said Maqsood Ahmad (name changed), adding, “Another trooper inside the vehicle threw the jacket out which they (troopers) were forcing him to wear.”Ahmad said the youth started screaming though troopers succeed in forcing him to wear the jacket,” Ahmad said.

On noticing this, people gathered near the spot and CRPF troopers fled the place leaving the retarded person on road along with the army jacket, locals told media. “They were CRPF troopers. We are sure they were preparing a fake killing in view of the forthcoming parliamentary elections,” said Zahoor Ahmad. “We were seeing the incident from a distance but when trooper were forcing him to wear the jacket we felt suspicious and started approaching the spot.”

Locals said troopers would have killed him however people in the nearby agricultural fields saved him by coming to his rescue. “If we had not been there in the fields, the Indian troopers would have taken the victim with them and God knows what they would have done to him,” said a resident Ghulam Hassan. “The government should make troopers accountable for every action.”

A police officer who reached the spot denied the allegation and said that the youth was pelting stones at the CRPF vehicle following which the CRPF troopers beat him. 
Sopore based CRPF Commanding Officer A.K Singh said: “I have no information about the incident though we have not sent anybody to Bandipora. I will confirm from my units about the incident.”

MILITANTS KILL 3 OF FAMILY IN REASI
May 8: In a dastardly act, three family members were allegedly killed by a group of four militants in Mahore area in Reasi district. The deceased have been identified as Ajaz Ahmed, the bridegroom, his father Ahmed Din, son of Kamdar Malik and mother of the bride Taj Begum wife of Mushtaq Ahmed. Police identified militants involved in the killing as Farooq Ahmed alias Ishfaq, son of Ghulam Din resident of Bharmi Dar, Ahmed Din alias Khalid son of Jamal Din resident of Adbase, Nazir Ahmed alias Nazar son of Abdul Rahim Sheikh resident of Gulabgarh and Bashir Ahmed alias Janbaz son of Ghulam Mohammed Sheikh resident of Gulabgarh. 

Police said that a group of four local militants barged into the house of Ahmed Din son of Kamdar Malik resident of village Dewal Morha Bharmidhar. Police sources stated that Ahmed Din had organized a dinner party after the marriage of his son Ajaz Ahmed.Police further said that the terrorists indiscriminately fired upon the bridegroom Ajaz Ahmed and his father Ahmed Din and mother of the bride Taj Begum, killing them on the spot.
 Police sources maintained that preliminary investigation revealed that one of the militants, identified as Farooq Ahmad had some rivalry with the bride's family adding that gory killings took place because of rivalry. 

IGP (Jammu) assessed the situation and issued direction to the police officers to launch a search operation in the suspected areas and nab the accused militants involving in the heinous crime immediately. Divisional Commissioner, Jammu, Dr. Pawan Kotwal rushed to Gulabgarh, Reasi to assess the situation arising due to killing.
PROTESTS IN BATMALOO

May 1: Massive protests were held in Batmaloo as youth raised anti-poll slogans. Several people, including a sub-inspector were injured during pitched battle. The residents later alleged that police thrashed them. A delegation of the residents told media that a large contingent of policemen led by the station house officer, Batmaloo, appeared near Firdousabad and caught hold of some youth and a woman who were engaged in the construction of their house.

The policemen beat the youth to the pulp and also dragged the woman, Haseena Bano wife of Noor Muhammad Bhat, and bundled her into a police Gypsy, the residents said. The superintendent of police, south, Atul Goel, said that police swung into action after youth held protests and resorted to stone pelting. Regarding the thrashing of womenfolk, he said, “I have no information about it.”  

CRPF THRASHES PHOTOJOURNALISTS, GK STAFFER INJURED
May 3: On the World Press Day, photo journalists were again thrashed by the CRPF while they were discharging their professional duties during anti-election and pro- freedom protest in old city. Greater Kashmir photo journalist, Aman Farooq, and Kashmir Times photojournalist, Qazi Irshad, were injured in troopers’ action. The photojournalists said they were asked to back off when the protest broke out in the old city. 

 
“However when we continued to shoot the ruthless beating of protesters by the CRPF, they (troopers) baton charged all photojournalists,” they said.

 “The police tried to defend the photojournalists but they too received some beating from the police,” they added. The photojournalists however hailed DSP North, Waseem Qadri, for his defending the photojournalists.

9 WOUNDED IN SOPORE SHOOTOUT
2 STUDENTS RECEIVE BULLET INJURY
May 13: At least nine persons including six civilians’ sustained injuries when people protested against forced voting in Seelu village. Three vehicles were also damaged during the protest. Hundreds of people especially youth staged protests against troopers of 22 RR who were snatching photo-identity cards of youth and forcing them to cast votes, an eyewitness told media.
Nine persons including six civilians and three CRPF persons sustained injures during the protest. One of the injured Musaib Ahmad Sofi son of Bashir Ahmad was referred to a Srinagar hospital in critical condition. Locals told media that troopers of 22 RR who are involved in killing of two youth of Bomai were forcing youth to cast votes.
 “The protest erupted in Telwani Mohalla of Seelu village where troopers started detaining youth in camp after snatching their photo identity cards,” a protestor said. “The youth were released after casting the vote.”

Manzoor Ahmad who said he was forced to vote told media that troopers snatched his I-card and asked him to cast vote to get it back. “I lied having cast vote and showed them fake ink mark but they came to know about the trick and roughed me up, which led to protests in the village,” said Ahmad.

“After 2 pm we saw troopers beating and forcing youth to cast vote. When we enquired they abused us,” said an elderly person in the locality. Police and CRPF men reached the spot and started cane charging protesters leaving many persons injured.

TWO STUDENTS INJURED 
May 13: Two young students were badly injured in clashes between protestors and CRPF in Dooru. The two youth identified as Mufeed Ahmad Shah, 19, son of Bashir Ahmad Shah and Tufail Ahmad Dar, 18, son of Khazir Muhammad Dar were later shifted to a hospital in Srinagar where doctors stated their condition as critical.

“We were sitting on a parapet of the shop in the evening. Army and CRPF men chased us without any provocation and target fired on the people,” said Tufail. The bullet hit the 12th standard student Tufail in the wrist. According to Dr Reyaz Ahmed, Assistant Professor at SKIMS, the injury is serious and the boy might have to lose his hand.

Mufeed Ahmed of Dooru has also been hit by a bullet in the head. “CRPF and army opened direct fire on us. Protests erupted after troopers chased us unprovoked. It was a political vendetta as our village did not participated in polls,” said Mufeed.

As the news of the incident spread, people came out on streets and staged massive protests.

This infuriated CRPF troopers who stormed in the house of one Abdul Majeed Zargar, ransacked the household, broke window panes and completely damaged the house. The CRPF troopers later entered into Model School and ransacked it. Another child of Khalifapora Khanyar, Mursaleen Ashraf was also hit by CRPF bullet.

POLICE DENIES

Senior Superintendent of Police Baramulla Viplav Kumar told media: “Nobody was injured in police action.” 

POLICE HARASSMENT SPARKS PROTEST IN BARAMULLA
DC ASSURES ACTION
May 15: The thrashing of children allegedly by the police at Khanpora on May 14 triggered massive demonstrations with people demanding action against the accused. The protesters said the policemen from Sheeri Training Centre while travelling through Khanpora on May 14, showed provocative gestures to group of children playing cricket in a ground. 

“The children hooted at the policemen and this infuriated them. They severely thrashed the children injuring many of them” the protesters said.Ghulam Ahmad Akhoon, who heads the Auqaf Islamia, said the policemen later barged into residential houses at Hyder Mohall and smashed the windowpanes. Shouting anti-police slogans, the hundreds of people blocked the Varmul Uri highway and demanded action against the accused policemen.

 “We can’t tolerate the hooliganism by the policemen. We want stern punishment against them,” the protesters said. Later the deputy commissioner, Lateef-u-Zaman Deva reached the spot and pacified the protesters promising action against the accused policemen.

MOTHERS PROTEST IN SOPORE QUELLED

May 2: Police fired several rounds of ammunition in air to scare away several mothers who were demonstrating in Sopore town against the arrest of their sons by police during overnight raids in the past three days. More than 14 youths have been arrested on the mere suspicion that they might participate in anti-election protests that have become a routine in several parts of the Valley, their parents said. The Assistant Superintendent of Police Sopur B.S.Tuti said that these youths have been taken into “preventive custody.”

Many residents of Sopore town told media that personnel of the infamous Special Operation Group (SOG) picked up the youths from their homes in the past three nights. 

“They barged into our house yesterday night and picked up my son .They kicked him before they bundled him up into a bullet proof vehicle. Today when we went to police they feigned ignorance about his whereabouts,” said Aisha Begum (name changed on request.)

For nearly three hours traffic was disrupted in the town, as the mothers of the arrested youth marched on roads shouting slogans against the government and police. Police, however, resorted to aerial firing to scare them away.
STUDENTS BEATEN IN SOPORE
May 20: Police beat up two students of Government Boy’s Higher Secondary School Sopore after they protested against eve teasing of a girl by policemen. According to media, Rizwan Ahmad Dar son of Ghulam Muhammad Dar resident of New Colony Sopore and his friend were severely beaten by police when they protested against them for eve-teasing a girl.
Both the students were rushed to Government Hospital Sopore.Their condition is stated to be critical. The students of the school alleged that principal had expressed his helplessness. “I am helpless, I can’t do anything,” the students quoted the principal as saying.

ANTI-ARMY DEMO IN KUPWARA
May 24: The beating of a youth by an army officer triggered protests in border district of Kupwara with people demanding action against the official. Reports said that one Shabir Ahmad was parking his vehicle in the Kupwara market when army personnel intercepted them. 
“They used abusive language against Shabir. He lodged a protest and entered into a heated argument with the troopers. While the argument was going on, an army officer of Subedar rank appeared on the scene and without listening to Shabir dragged him and beat him with gunbutts,” the locals said, adding, “He was rescued by the passers-by”.

The locals protested against the army action and staged and anti-army demonstration. Raising anti-administration and anti-army slogans, the protestors blocked the vehicular movement on the roads and demanded action against the army officer. 

POLICE HARASSMENT TRIGGERS PROTEST IN BANDIPORA
May 29: The harassment of youth allegedly by police sparked massive demonstration in Bandipora with people demanding action against the accused policemen. Shouting pro-freedom and anti-police slogans, hundreds of people took out a procession from Jamia Masjid to protest against the harassment of youth allegedly by police. The protesters said the police had registered cases against 45 youth for participating in last year’s uprising for freedom. 

 
“Police is unnecessarily harassing the youth to spread a reign of terror. It is a sheer attempt to suppress the ongoing resistance movement,” the protesters alleged. The youth said they are directed to frequently report to police stations. “We are made to wait for hours together and asked unnecessary questions. We can’t concentrate on our jobs. If the police don’t stop the harassment, we will be forced to launch and agitation and Government will be responsible for its consequences,” they added.

FOLLOW UP

BOMAI SERVES TWO DAY ULTIMATUM TO GOVERNMENT    
PROVIDE COPY OF PROBE; WITHDRAW FAKE CASES AGAINST YOUTH: REHMAN
May 10: Setting a two day ultimatum to the state government for providing copy of the probe initiated into the killing of two youth and withdrawal of ‘concocted cases’ against the residents, The Bomai residents in North Kashmir’s Sopore said they will court arrest, in case the government fails to meet their demands.

Muhammad Amin Tantray and Javid Ahmed Dar fell to the bullets of Army’s 22 Rashtriya Rifles on February 21 this year. The unprovoked killings had triggered massive protests across the valley prompting Army and the civil administration to order probe. The enquiry conducted following the orders of Chief Minister by the then Deputy Commissioner, Baramulla indicted Army men for killing two youth without any reason or rhyme. Subsequently, the mounting public pressure prompted Army to remove the ‘Rajinder post’ from the village to adjoining Wadura.

“Despite assurances the government has failed to punish the killers of the youth. They have even failed to provide us the copy of the probe conducted by the DC. Instead the police has unleashed a reign of terror in the area and have charged more than 50 people including our spokesman on concocted charges,” Hakeem-ur-Rehman, Chairman of the Bomai Coordination Committee (BCC) that spearheaded the Army withdrawal campaign from the village, told media, adding, “The government should furnish the copy of probe and withdraw all cases which have been registered against the Bomai residents within two days. In case they fail to do so, we’ll court arrest.”
He said the people of Bomai village had unanimously agreed to stay away from the elections to the Baramulla parliamentary constituency that will go to polls on Wednesday (May 13) as state government has failed to act against the troops responsible for the death of the youth.

“We have decided to stay away from the elections because the troops responsible for the death of our youth have not been punished. But the police and some politicians have given it a wrong direction and started a campaign against us,” Rehman said, adding, “From last five days police has made the lives of our youth miserable. They have implicated 50 youth on false charges besides filing 3 fake cases against our spokesperson. It seems that police wants to take revenge of the peaceful agitation we staged to get the Army camp removed from the area.”

BCC, Chairman said that the people of Bomai want to lead a peaceful and dignified life but the police was harassing the people without any reason or rhyme. He said day in and day out police is conducting raids to nab the youth and to book them on false charges.

“We are fed up with the daily raids conducted by the police. We want an end to the harassment so that we are able to lead a peaceful life,” Rehman said.  
TWIN KILLINGS ROCK HANDWARA AFTER POLLS
May 15: Close on the heels of parliamentary elections in north Kashmir, militants allegedly struck thrice in quick succession in Handwara and Kupwara since May 14 evening, beheading a villager, shooting a teenager dead and abducting another person, while bodies of three persons were recovered by the police from separate places in the valley. 

Barely a day after the Handwara-Kupwara belt witnessed a sizeable turnout in Lok Sabha elections; a group of gunmen appeared in the area on Thursday evening (May 14) and forced their entry into the house of one Ghulam Muhammad Mir, in the Bun Watsar village of Rajwar. 

Reports said that the gunmen opened heavy fire inside the house, leaving Mir’s son, Riyaz, critically injured, and fled from the scene. Locals, who rushed to the house on hearing the screams of the family, found the blood-soaked teenager dead in his father’s arms, and his kin weeping uncontrollably at his death. Fear gripped the locality on the incident and there were protests against the killing. 

People were still in shock at the shooting when news swept over the area that a severed head had been found in the middle school in Ladibal, another Rajwar locality. As the villagers rushed to the scene, they were met with the sight of the severed head of one, Ghulam Mohiuddin Sheikh, a forest department employee and a father of five children belonging to the Hanga area of Handwara. Sheikh, presently, posted on guard duties in the forest compartments 10 and 11 in Magam Handwara, had been killed on May 14 by unidentified assailants who apparently hid the body and left the head in the school. 

Eyewitnesses said that a hundred rupee note had been thrust into the mouth of the severed head along with a slip signed Al Badr saying that the same fate awaited the killers of  Walid and Abdullah. Muhammad Jamal, the younger brother of the victim, had been killed in 1999, reports said. 

Sheikh’s family said that he had left for work as usual on (May 14) Thursday morning, and had rung up his home at 4 p.m. from Handwara bazaar saying that he would be back within half-an-hour. “We kept on waiting, but he did not return,” they said. According the family, they were informed this morning by the police that the head of the victim was in their custody. The double killing in quick succession had jolted the area and it is in a grip of fear and apprehension. 

The superintendent of the police (SP) for Handwara said that the assistance of the army had been requisitioned and sniffer dogs pressed into service in searches for the body in the forest terrain. He said that the police was proceeding in a thorough manner and hoped to reach a conclusion soon.
Meanwhile, panic gripped the Guthlipora area of Kupwara after news spread that a young carpenter, Mushtaq Ahmad Ahangar, had been abducted. A large number of people took to the streets demanding the recovery of the kidnapped youth.

ARMY SAYS OUR DAY STARTS AT NIGHT, SO BE READY FOR CONSEQUENCES: ZAINAKOOT RESIDENTS
ALLEGATIONS BASELESS: DEF SPOKESMAN
May 8: Irked by the anti-poll demonstrations on the election day, army allegedly harassed youth of Zainkoot area. The residents of Zainakoot, HMT alleged that since May 7, troopers are raiding their houses and taking credentials of the family members especially the youth. “They have warned us of dire consequence for participating in anti-election demonstrations,” a youth, pleading anonymity said.

On May 7-the day parliamentary polls were held in Srinagar.The youth of the area staged anti-election protests. During the clashes, at least a dozen persons including some CRPF personnel were injured. “Later, situation became normal and cops were removed from the area,” a youth told media. He said that army personnel visited his home in the morning. The youth said, from May 6, afternoon the troopers have started visiting their homes and asking them to attend the local unit.   

“They are asking us to come to their camp,” another youth, who was a part of a protest, said. “Whenever they catch hold of youth in the market they snatch his identity card and ask him to visit their camp”. The residents alleged that army is harassing them for staging anti-election protests.” Even the people who were not present in the area on Election Day are being asked to come to the camp,” the residents alleged.

The locals alleged that army is also giving threat calls to the youth, who participated in the protests. “Many of the calls have been made from a BSNL number by a person, who identifies himself as Commander Uday,” a youth who received several warning calls, said,adding, “Uday says we will teach you a lesson if you don’t visit the camp.,”

Another resident quoted the caller as having said, “Our day starts at night, so be ready for consequences”. The residents said that due to the harassment, many of the youth have fled from the area. The residents accused the National Conference workers, active in the area, of identifying the youth and giving their phone numbers to troopers. “They are doing it since we had boycotted polls,” residents said.

Army spokesman, Lt Col J S Brar denied the allegations. “Some trouble was created by the people on the Election Day, but the issue was dealt by police. We know nothing about the issue. Hence, all the allegations against army are baseless,” he said. A local officer of 2 RR, pleading anonymity, said there is absolutely no truth in the allegations.

“We have harmonious relations with the local populace here. There are some people who want to malign the image of army by leveling such allegations,” he added.

ISLAMABAD TRIPLE MURDER CASE
6 YEARS ON, JUSTICE CONTINUES TO ELUDE VICTIM FAMILIES
May 16: Nearly six years have passed since the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) recommended the government to prosecute army personnel accused of killing three innocent youth in custody in Islamabad district, but justice continues to elude the families of victims. The commission had found commandant K K Sharma and Major Jagtar Singh of 1 RR stationed at Aishmuqam, Islamabad involved in the triple murder case, and had asked the government to implement the recommendations within 30 days from the date of judgment- May 22, 2003.

According to the report, three persons Hilal Ahmad Nasti of Kadipora, Muhammad Ramzan of Maligham and Ghulam Rasool of Makni were arrested by personnel of 1 RR  during the intervening night  of June 13-14,1995 and were subjected to severe torture for several days before being brutally murdered. 

Besides, a carpet weaver of Pahalgam, Farooq Ahmad Wani, son of Muhammad Subhan Wani was also arrested by the same agency and tortured. But Wani managed to escape during the intervening night of June 22-23, 1995 and recorded his statement before the magistrate in district court Islamabad. However, on June 22 2000, Farooq too was killed under mysterious circumstances. 

In its report SHRC has quoted the witness Farooq Ahmad: 

“During the night intervening June 22-23, 1995 all of us were taken to Ghadipora Bridge. Ghulam Rasool was stripped naked and tied with a tree nearby before volley of bullets were pumped into his body by the army men. His head was chopped off. Later his arms and legs were amputated and thrown into Lidder River. We were taken near the dismembered body and told to help Hilal Ahmad who was ordered to throw the amputated parts into the stream. Muhammad Ramzan too was killed in the same pattern.” 

The report further reads that Farooq along with Hilal Ahmad were taken back to the camp. Later in the night they were taken on some bridge and stripped naked. Farooq was dragged and shot at. The bullet hit him on the neck. Meanwhile, Hilal Ahmad was killed brutally and cut into pieces. Some villagers raised an alarm as Farooq was told by the army men to throw the body parts of Hilal into the stream. While, he was throwing the amputated limbs into the water, Farooq slipped and started to drown. However, he swam and managed to escape. Near Akoora village he came out of water and spent the night in the open till next morning when the villagers provided him the clothes. He reached Islamabad and informed the relatives of Muhammad Ramzan, Ghulam Rasool and Hilal Ahmad Nasti about the entire incident. 

While Farooq was narrating the incident to people, RR 1 men came to know about his escape. His house was repeatedly raided. Fearing elimination at the hands of troops, Farooq approached the magistrate and got his statement recorded under section 164 CrPC. He also said that he can identify all the army officials responsible for these brutal murders. 

Though the court found the accused army men involved in the case and offences under section 302, 343 RPC were proved against them, the case could not proceed further for want of sanction for prosecution and the matter is still pending before the competent authority. 

Earlier, succumbing to public pressure, the state government had ordered an enquiry into the killings. The enquiry was however never completed. The story took an ugly turn when the lone witness in the case, Farooq was also killed under mysterious circumstances.  

However, SHRC on receiving a complaint from one of the relatives of the victim found the accused army men involved in the three murders and asked the state government to book the culprits, but till now the family members of the victims are still waiting for justice. 
“In spite of the SHRC recommendations nothing, the culprits are still roaming free,” said family members of the victims, adding that they were even denied due compensation.

PSA DETENTION OF 8 REVOKED
36 HELD DURING POLLS TO BE RELEASED
May 14: The state government has issued orders for release of 36 persons arrested to foil the election boycott campaign. The decision was taken in a Review Committee meeting chaired by the chief secretary S. S. Kapur.The meeting was held on the instructions of Chief Minister Omar Abdullah. The persons being released include eight detainees whose detention under the draconian Public Safety Act has been revoked. 

These persons are Javed Ahmad Khan of Sheeri, Varmul; Irfan Ahmad Akhoon of Khanpora, Varmul; Muhammad Rafiq Ganai of Telwani Islamabad, presently Nowgam Srinagar; Bashir Ahmad Bhat of Zadoora Pulwama, presently Hyderpora Srinagar; Mashooq Ahmad Magray of Mungahal, Islamabad; Abdul Qayoom Mattoo of Kishtwar; Ghulam Mohiuddin Naik of Kokernag Islamabad and Muhammad Rafiq Pahloo alias Muhammad Salim Nanaji of Natipora, Srinagar.

The other 28 persons being released are presently lodged in various police stations or in judicial custody under preventive sections for their involvement in anti-poll campaign during Lok Sabha elections which concluded on May 13.

40 BOYS DETAINED FOR ATTACK ON PDF ACTIVIST

POLICE DENIES, LOCALS STAGE PROTEST

May 5: Hundreds of people including women and children took to streets in Kalashpora, Khankah-e-Moalla and Habba Kadal areas of old city to lodge their protest against the arrest of dozens of youth following the attack on a Peoples Democratic Forum (PDF) worker on May 4.

Abdul Azim Fashoo, a 50-year-old PDF worker and former National Conference activist was severely injured when unidentified gunmen attacked him on May 9 evening while he was on his way to home at Khankah-i-Mohalla along with his personal security guard.   

According to locals, police after registering a case raided the houses of at least 40 youth in Kalashpora and Khankah-e-Moalla areas and asked their family members to send them to the police station. When these youth reached police station Zainakadal they were put behind the bars without any enquiry.

“The policemen later asked them to call their family members and get lunch and dinner for them,” alleged the family members. The residents of the twin localities raising anti-police slogans demanded immediate release of the detained youth.

“They are innocents and police is trying to make them scapegoats after crumbling under political pressure. It is a shame on part of police that innocent youth and their families are put to unnecessary trouble when such things happen. Does it mean only politicians have a right to live and when they face any danger common man should be annoyed,” questioned the protesting residents.

While DSP Mahraj Gunj, Abdul Hameed said the youth called for investigations are former militants, SP North Abdul Waheed told media there have been no formal arrests, but investigations are on. “We are investigating the matter. Some of the youth whom we are questioning are former militants and are residing in the area so it becomes imperative to include them in the investigations,” Hameed said, adding, “They were called in the morning and released later in the evening.” 

Meanwhile, police arrested four youth from Habba Kadal. The youth, according to eyewitnesses were protesting against the arrest of 40 persons from Kalashpora and Khankah-e-Moalla.According to eyewitnesses among the arrested youth, Shabir Ahmad who was also injured after a tear smoke canister hit him in face and Umar Amin Bhat have been detained in SOG headquarters. 

PROPOSAL TO HIKE SALARIES OF SPOs

DGP KULDEEP KHODA HAS ASKED THE GOVT TO INCRESE SALARIES OF SPOs

May 21: The police have recommended an increase in the monthly honorarium of the Special Police Officers from Rs 3,000 to at least Rs 5,000.Always on the forefront in fighting militancy, the SPOs are an inevitable part of the J-K police. At least, 25,000 SPOs are working with the police to fight counter-insurgency, since 1995.
Initially, the SPOs got Rs 1,500 per month. Their honorarium was increased during the tenure of Chief Minister Ghulam Nabi Azad about two years ago. Sources said the initiative was taken due to the fact that the SPOs worked on equal footing with constables in combating terrorism but didn’t get even half their salary.DGP Kuldeep Khoda has made the move.

However, sources in police pointed out there were no proposal with the government to regularize the SPOs, and as they were temporary, they were not entitled to the benefits and facilities the constables enjoy. Even the benefits under SRO 43 are not applicable to the SPOs, but in some cases, they are considered on humanitarian grounds.
Over 22,000 families are dependents on the SPOs who work round-the-clock. A constable gets Rs 14,000 per month and an SPO is paid only Rs 3,000 per month.
In Doda,one of worst militancy affected area, there are around 7,000 SPOs followed by over 1,800 in Baramulla,nearly 1,000 in Srinagar,over 500 in Budgam,more than 1,000 in Anantnag,over 400 in Pulwama,over 800 in Kupwara,about 100 in Leh,below 100 in Kargil,over 400 in Ganderbal,over 300 in Kulgam,over 300 in Awantipora,over 500 Handwara,more than 1,500 in Jammu,over 1,000 in Kathua and Udhampur each, around 800 in Reasi,over 1,000 in Ramban, Poonch and Rajouri districts each.
‘JAMMU BOYS HARASS KASHMIRI STUDENTS’
MATTER HAS BEEN SORTED OUT: POLICE
May 22: Kashmiri students and scholars of National Institute of Technology (NIT) staged a protest alleging harassment at the hands of students from Jammu. They said four Kashmiri boys were beaten by Jammu students in one of the institute hostels. They said despite several complaints lodged with the institute’s administration no action was taken against the culprit students whom they alleged of continuously harassing them since last year’s Amarnath land row.
“One of the students was hit in his abdomen and another in face. The other two have sustained head injuries,” said a student wishing anonymity. The injured students are Amir, Omar, Syed Saboor and Kashif Hassan.

“We have spent several nights in Hazratbal Shrine and different guest houses around our institute since Amarnath land row. Criminal behaviour of Jammuties is annoying us,” he said, adding,”Some days ago a Kashmiri student slapped a student from Jammu and he was expelled from the institute by the authorities. If the rules have been made for all, why aren’t the culprits put behind bars.” He said among the 400 students residing in the three hostels-Jhelum, Chenab and Indus-only 25 are local Kashmiris while the rest are from Jammu.

Another student, wishing anonymity for fear of reprisal from institute authorities, said they are feeling insecure in hostels which may result in their poor performance in the forthcoming exams which are commencing from 23rd May.
“They (Jammuties) would not have dared to act so unlawfully, but they are backed by the institute administration itself. Twelve days back a Kashmiri student was beaten mercilessly by these criminals, but the administration forced us to keep quiet,” he said.

The Kashmiri students accused the Chief Warden, S K Bukhari of inaction despite several complaints. “He (warden) said he was not accountable for all that was happening between the students in the hostels,” they said.

SHO Hazratbal, Ali Mohammad said the problem has been sorted out. “All of us were there to take stock of the situation. Additional DC Srinagar, SP Hazratbal and I went to see the spot and ensured the situation is taken under control,” he said.

SP Hazratbal., Maqsood-u-Zaman said, “The situation was not that worse as it had been sensationalized. The problem was between few students who quarreled last night. We have taken the situation under control and we have also assured students that we will provide them security. The situation is quite normal now.

HR ACTIVIST UNTOO GETS 4 YRS RI UNDER OSA
May 27: A Delhi court sentenced noted human rights activist Mohammad Ahsan Untoo and Ghulam Nabi Najar to four years rigorous imprisonment for possessing some secret documents pertaining to army. Since both have already completed four years in jail, they are expected to be released from Tihar jail complex by evening.

Untoo's lawyer N D Panchule said his client had come to Delhi on February 5, 2005 on personal work which included arranging for his relative's doctor's fee since his relative had cancer. He said the police had made false arrest memos and showed his arrest near Dhaula Kuan on February 13, 2005. Five days later the police picked up another political activist, Ghulam Nabi Najar and made him co-accused.

Additional Sessions Judge Brajesh Sethi held Najar and Untoo guilty under the Official Secrets Act. According to the prosecution, both the accused were involved in passing on secret information to an enemy country. The classified documents found Untoo's possession included a booklet titled 'Planning and conduct of patrolling 1956',' Operation war volume IV and maps of Jammu and Kashmir border area showing deployment of army units. 

CHANGE CONVOY TIMING: LASJAN RESIDENTS
ARMY VIOLATES REGULATIONS: IGP
May 12: Residents of Lasjan and adjacent areas have sought restrictions on the movement of army vehicles during day hours saying their movement was cause of frequent accidents and traffic jams. The demand came a day after an army truck crushed to death 10-year-old girl of Lasjan on Srinagar-Jammu highway.

The residents of Athwajan, Pantha Chowk and Lasjan demanded the daily army convoys and other army cavalcades should ply during the evening hours. “For the past 20 years, we have been observing daily movement of army convoys along the highway. The convoys not only bring the entire public and private transport to a grinding halt but also cause fatal accidents,” said the residents, adding the convoy drivers often drive rashly. On May 11, police registered a case of negligent and rash driving against driver of the army truck that crushed Khushboo, the 10-year old schoolgirl. Her death led to protests that were dealt with use of ruthless force by police.

“We don’t say the army vehicles should not ply at all. But they must ply during the night when there is no traffic on roads. This will not only facilitate their movement, but ensure that no accidents and traffic jam takes place,” said Abdul Aziz, a resident of Pantha Chowk. Aziz alleged the army drivers drive negligently. “The driver who killed Khushboo was drunk and was driving the truck very fast. Highway is often flooded with pedestrians, particularly the school children near Pantha Chowk,” he said, adding the movement of army convoy during day hours was a grave issue.

Khushboo’s death is second of its kind in the past one week. Earlier on May 8, an army vehicle crushed to death a resident of Khanyar, Bashir Ahmad Sofi, near Athwajan. “The traffic police cops hardly check the negligent and rash driving by army drivers along the highway though they fine the drivers of public and private vehicles. Is the army above law?” the residents questioned.

“Many a time we have seen army drivers beating the Sumo drivers for overtaking their vehicles. The convoy holds the civilians hostage, causing loss of precious time,” they said.

The traffic authorities clearly the army violated rules. “Last year we had an understanding with the army that their vehicles will travel from Badami Bagh to Sherghari via Radio Kashmir after 6 pm. But this year they violated the agreement and their start plying at 3 pm. But we would talk to the army authorities again,” said the inspector general of police (traffic), Muhammad Amin Shah. “The army must abide by our regulatory measures. Sometimes they violate these measures. This creates problems for people,” he said.

However, a senior traffic police official said they had “very little” control over the movement of army vehicles. “The army hardly abides by the traffic regulations. The local policemen are not able to do much for obvious reasons that the government doesn’t want to enter into any tussle with army. That is why it is the military traffic police that check their driving. But I doubt whether they do it or not,” the official, pleading anonymity, said.

PHOTOGRAPHER MISSING IN CUSTODY FOR 12 YRS
Hapless Father Seeks Whereabouts

May 5: Despite court orders, the successive governments have failed to locate the whereabouts of a Kashmir University photographer who went missing in the custody of the notorious Special Task Force of JK Police in 1997.Twenty-eight year old Fayaz Ahmad Beigh of Khajapora Nowshehra in old city, Srinagar, working with the varsity’s Central Asian Studies department, was allegedly picked up from University campus by the STF personnel on September 6, 1997. Fayaz’s detention had triggered widespread protests by students and teachers, forcing the police to search for his whereabouts but in vain.

 “The STF team was led by its SP Operations Awantipora, Hans Raj Parihar. The STF cooked up a story and filed an FIR in Soura Police Station stating that my son had run away from their custody,”Fayaz’s father, Abdur Rashid said.

The main accused in the case, Parihar, is facing trial in the fake encounter killing of at least three civilians in Ganderbal for promotions and rewards during his tenure as Senior Superintendent of Police, Ganderbal.Rashid said he had approached the then Home minister, Ali Muhammad Sagar, who directed the CID to probe the matter.

“The Inspector General of CID submitted in its report that Fayaz was arrested from university campus and the story put forth by the STF was concocted and false. However, the Government did not take any action,” he said.

After failing to get justice, Rashid had approached the State Human Rights Commission in 2002. He said the Commission after probing the matter also rejected the STF and Police story regarding Fayaz’s escape as “ridiculous” and recommended monetary relief and criminal proceedings against the accused STF personnel.

However, after the Government did not take any action, Rashid knocked the doors of the court. He filed a writ petition in the court for implementation of SHRC recommendations.

In 2003, Rashid said, the court upheld the SHRC judgement and directed the Government to initiate action against the accused. “But the Government has maintained silence over the matter. Instead, the accused are trying their best to hush up the case. But I will not sit and continue to fight to locate whereabouts of my son,” Rashid said.

SHAWL SELLER ARRESTED 18 YEARS BACK, MISSING IN CUSTODY
May 16: Family of 26 year old Ghulam Hassan Lone alleges that he was arrested by army in July 1991 and subsequently disappeared from their custody. His family said he used to make his living by selling shawls in villages and the money he earned was enough to keep the hearth burning.

It has been 18 years since he went missing, but the family has no clue of his whereabouts. Abdul Rashid, his uncle still approaches politicians, human right groups or army officers seeking their help in tracing him. It was on July 11 in 1991 that Lone was preparing to leave for work when troops of 18 Dogra cordoned off this village 19 kilometers from Kupwara town. The villagers were asked to come out of their houses for a search operation and parade."Ater a door-to-door search, the officer who was leading the search party asked Lone to accompany them," says Rashid and added, “He was taken to the Panzgam camp. We were sure about his innocence and were sure that he will be released."

Two days later, the army again cordoned off the village, and this time the troops did not search any house but instead procured villagers' signatures on a plain paper, says Rashid. The army men assured them that Ghulam Hassan will be released in a day or two. The family says they were so sure of Ghulam Hassan's release that they did not even file a police complaint at first. When after seven days Ghulam Hassan was not released, his father Abdul Karim went to Panzgam camp says the family. At the camp, army officers told Abdul Karim that his son had been released two days after his arrest.

The villagers say they approached the then Kupwara deputy commissioner who wrote a letter to the commanding officer of Army's 18 Dogra. However, the officers maintained their old stand that Ghulam Hassan had been released. A group of villagers later met the then Divisional Commissioner and Advisor to governor. The family says the army threatened them not to pursue the case. 

EVEN AFTER 6 YEARS THEY WAIT FOR THEIR SON
May 24: Six years have passed but the parents of Arshad Muneer of Muhammadpora village in Kulgam have not given up the search for their son, who they allege, disappeared in custody. He disappeared on his way to Srinagar from his village in Kulgam.For three days the family did not know that he had disappeared. For them, Arshad was attending his school in Srinagar.
This was 2003 and like many other parents, Arshad’s parents also do not know who picked him up or what happened to him. But the search for him is still on. On the morning of September 27, 2003, the family says Arshad, then 17, left home, for school. He did not reach school nor did he return home. On the fourth day, panic gripped Arshad’s family members when they got to know that he had not reached the school.
His father, Abdul Hamid Itoo, said,”We started searching for him the very next day. We went to all his friends and relatives places. Then we started looking for him in villages and towns of the valley, but all in vain. “The family says ultimately, it approached police and administration. They too did not help,” said Itoo.He added that they also approached the state Human Rights Commission (SHRC) but that too did not lead to any success. They wrote to police and civil administration.However, it did not help.
For the first three years, he said, they were hopeful of Arshad’s return. But after the fake encounter incidents got exposed, Itoo said, their hope is slowly fading. According to them, when Arshad went missing, Superintendent of police (SP), Kulgam was Hans Raj Parihar, who is an accused in the Ganderbal fake encounter case. We are not even sure whether he is alive or dead,”Itoo said.
TROOP VACATION
EDUCATION DEPTT TO APPROACH HOME DEPTT
May 18: The Department of Education would approach the Department of Home to vacate troops occupying buildings of District Institute of Education and Training (DIET) in Sopore since 1995.According to reports; 14 years ago troops occupied the DIET due to which its function got crippled. 

Media quoted Commissioner Secretary G A Peer as saying that the department was mulling a strategy to evacuate troops from DIET premises so that peaceful environs are created for students and teachers. Peer said the Education department would approach the Home department to remove troops from the institute. Besides, he said the department would hold talks with senior security officials and district administration to discuss as to how to pull out troops.

Despite government decision to pull out troops from education institution, the SOG and CRPF continue to occupy portions of the DIET. The staff working in the DIET said 11 rooms and two conference room were under the occupation of troops. 

However, teachers said only nine rooms including a staff room and an office are available with the college authority. DIET students said they were facing grave problems as they are being frisked daily while entering the premises of DIET. The students said many girls had left the DIET due to presence of troops inside the institute.

Deputy Commissioner Baramulla, Lateif-u-Zaman Deva said they have no information regarding the presence of troops in the DIET. “By circular they cannot put inside an institute,” Deva said. “But we will surely look into the matter.”

NAWABAZAR HOUSES, SHOPS UNDER OCCUPATION FOR 20 YEARS
May 19: For the past 21 years CRPF troopers have occupied two residential houses and three shops at Shah Mohalla Nawabazar without paying any rent to the owners. This is despite the fact that government has ordered shifting of troopers from all the private and government buildings. 

A local news gathering agency KNS said that since 1989 BSF has occupied two residential houses and three shops of Mehraj-ud-Din Zargar and constructed bunkers inside and outside them. Zargar said that since then different companies of troops occupied the buildings but “I have not been given any rent”. He said BSF initially paid Rs 2000 monthly rent but it was given only for limited period. “Then the houses were occupied by CRPF 16 Bn and I was denied of any rent,” he said. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
· MORE CASES OF DISAPPEARANCE,CUSTODIAL DEATHS FILED IN 2007:SHRC
May 1: Belying the State government’s claim of zero tolerance in Human rights violations, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) says the number of disappearance and custodial death cases filed with the SHRC in 2007-08 fiscal show an increase. While 67 disappearance cases were filed with the Commission from Kashmir division in 2007-08 fiscal, the number from the Jammu region during the corresponding period was 24.Though there was a decline in disappearance cases filed with the commission in the following fiscal-34 from Kashmir and just five from Jammu-the government records show just one case of custodial killing, disappearance during 2008 and four cases in 2007.  

“No cases of disappearances have been reported during the last few years. There may be an odd case of custodial killing, but there has been a sharp decline,” Director General (CID) Ashok Bhan said. “The government is firmly committed to its policy of zero tolerance to aberration or violation of human rights and we have been able to check it considerably,”Bhan added, maintaining the cases reported with the Commission may not necessarily be those that happened during the period when they were filed.
On its part, SHRC chairperson Bashir-ud-Din said,”SHRC record is based on the cases filed or reported during the last three years. Certainly, all these might not have taken place during the period, as many complaints come years later to register cases of their missing kin. But if we compare the number with previous years, it has swelled during the period.”
Going by the Commission data, even custodial death cases filed with the SHRC in the 2007-08 fiscal have increased -28 cases were reported from Jammu region and 12 from Kashmir. In 2008-09, though, the number declined: just three cases were reported to the Commission from Jammu and six from Kashmir.However, authorities maintain these cases were of previous years.

The Commission is also concerned over the ‘no response’ of the government on the recommendations sent on such cases. “We understand it is difficult for the government to say whether the complaints of disappearances are genuine, but the government must respond so that we can take them (such cases) to a logical conclusion,” said the Chairman.

Of the 290 cases of custodial killings filed since the inception of militancy, 56 have been challaned in court, 140 have been declared untraced and 6 have been treated as not admitted.
· 135 HR ABUSE INCIDENTS DURING MUFTI’S REGIME: CM
May 4: Stating that 135 incidents of human rights violations have taken place during Mufti Sayed’s regime, the chief minister Omar Abdullah said his government has acted tough against the violators by punishing the troopers involved in killing of youth and shifted an army camp from Bomai.

Addressing various election rallies in Kangan and Ganderbal constituencies, Omar said Peoples Democratic Party’s track record is not good. “During Mufti Muhammad Sayeed’s regime, 135 incidents of human rights violations had taken place. Not a single probe report was finalized and not a single trooper was punished,” he said. 

He said, “I am the first chief minister who investigated Bomai and Khaigam incidents within 15 days after the killings of civilians. The guilty soldiers were punished and army camp at Bomai shifted.”

He said that PDP president Mehbooba Mufti and one of the PDP MLAs raised hue and cry in the Assembly and alleged that 36 houses were set ablaze by troopers in Bandipora after an encounter.  “The white lie of PDP was exposed after PDP MLA and Rural Development Minster Ali Muhammad Sagar were sent to the area to take stock of the situation. During the survey, it was found that only one house was damaged,” Omar said.

· POLICE DETERMINED TO FIGHT MILITANCY: KHODA
May 14: Describing militancy as an area of concern, Director General of Jammu and Kashmir Police Kuldeep Khoda said his force is determined to tackle it firmly and in a professional manner. “Militancy continues to be an area of concern but the police is determined to tackle this menace firmly and in a professional manner,” Khoda said in a fax message to police establishments across the state at the end of final phase of Parliamentary elections. 
· 92 DETAINEES RELEASED SINCE JAN '09

May 22: Official sources said that the state government has released 92 detainees ever since Omar Abdullah-led coalition assumed power in January this year. They said that Omar Abdullah after taking over as the chief minister had said that the government would review the cases and consider release of prisoners against whom there were no serious charges.

 “Those released so far include 40 who were detained under Public Safety Act. Thirty-two were released following revocation of detention orders. Ten detainees were released through Joint Screening Committee and eight others through high-level meeting. Two were released on parole. On May 14, the government had released 36 detainees, including eight who were held under PSA,” they added.

· ‘OVER 12,000 KILLED IN PAST 8 YEARS’
May 30: Over 12,000 persons have been killed in the State during the past eight years in incidents of violence, mostly in Kashmir valley.

The Home Ministry of India says 8993 persons including 4905 alleged militants and 2927 civilians were killed in 11217 incidents from 2003 to 2007. During this period, it says, 1161 security personnel were also killed. It says number of incidents in 2006 was down by 16 per cent, civilian killing by 30 per cent, security force killing by 20 per cent as compared to 2005.It excludes killings in protests, disappearance, custodial disappearances, and other incidents of HR violation.

In 2007 (till October), the number of incidents were down by 33% and those of civilian killing by 59 % and forces by 27% over the corresponding period of previous year. However the data excludes killing of civilians by troops and police during pro-freedom demonstrations.

Police sources said in 2007, 903 militancy related incidents took place in Kashmir valley in which 94 civilians were killed, 335 injured. In the same year 15 policemen were killed and 40 injured while as 76 troopers were killed and 155 injured. In 2007 347 militants were killed.

Police sources said in 2008, 626 militancy related incidents were reported in which 38 civilians were killed. This excludes the killing of civilians by police and troops during the protests against the transfer of land to the Amarnath Shrine Board and subsequent freedom marches. In 2008, 10 policemen were killed and 39 were injured. In the same year 44 troopers were killed and 75 were injured. In the same period 237 militants were killed.

Sources said in 2001, 657 civilians, 80 policemen, 238 security force personnel including troops and 1001 militants were killed in 2766 incidents in Kashmir.

Sources said in 2002, 502 civilians, 71 policemen, 178 security force personnel, 847 militants were killed in 2440 militancy related incidents in Kashmir valley.

The Financial Commissioner, Home, Samuel Vergese refused to share data with media. “I don’t talk to people I don’t know,” he said and dropped the phone. However up to March 15, 2009, there is sharp decline in militancy related incidents. Police sources said there have been 35 incidents in which three civilians, two security forces personnel and nine militants were killed. It is official data and human rights groups describe the figure much higher.

REPORTED DISAPPEARANCES

· PORTER MISSING FROM ARMY CAMP 
May 4: A 16-year-old boy who worked as porter is missing from an army camp near Line of Control in Kupwara district. Mumtaz Ahmad Gujjar, 16, son of Alam ud-din Gujjar of Batpora Kupwara is missing from an army post at LoC for the past four days.  Mumtaz was working as a porter with 23 Punjab Regiment. 

 Meanwhile, the villagers gave a representation to SP Kupwara and deputy commissioner seeking whereabouts of the missing boy. Superintendent of police Kupwara Uttam Chand said, “We have registered a missing report in the police station Kupwara.”  
· YOUTH MISSING

May 28: A youth identified as Mukhtyar Ahmad Shah, son of Muhammad Maqbool Shah of Chadoora went missing from May 25 when he left his home for Srinagar.Since then his whereabouts are not known.Mukhtyar was studying in Amar Srinagar College, Srinagar.
EXPLOSIONS
· BLAST KILLS MINOR

May 2: A minor was killed and his two sisters injured when an explosive device they were fiddling with exploded at Trikanjan village in Uri. Police said that a 9-year old boy identified as Waseem Ahmad Najar son of Abdul Rashid Najar was playing with his two sisters Gulshana and Sara in a field at Trikanjan village, Boniyar in Uri.
 “While playing they found an abandoned grenade and started fiddling with it. The explosive device went off with a big bang, causing on spot death of the boy and injuries to his two sisters,” they said.

The locals said that the family was planning to shift to a hut in a nearby pasture in the upper reaches. “While the parents were shifting their belongings and `making arrangements for their stay at the place, the children found an abandoned grenade in a pasture and fiddled with it, causing the explosion,” they said.

Police have registered a case and launched investigations. 

During the 20-year old militancy in Kashmir, scores of minors have lost their lives while fiddling with the abandoned explosive devices. The explosive devices were either abandoned by militants or troopers. 

· GIRL KILLED BY MORTAR SHELL
May 22: A 3-year old girl was killed and his brother critically injured when a stray mortar shell exploded at Rajwar in border district of Kupwara.Police sources said that Rashida Bano, 3, daughter of Noor Alam Gujjar was playing with her 10 year old brother Mohammad Saleem in a field outside their residence near village Hamla Pati, Rajwar, some 12 Km South of Handwara town.
“While playing, they found an abandoned explosive shell and started fiddling with it. The explosive device went off with an explosion, injuring both critically. They were shifted to hospital where doctors declared Rasida brought dead while Saleem was shifted to SMHS hospital,” police sources said.
SHO Handwara Syed Fayaz told media that police have registered a case.

SUICIDES/FRATACIDAL KILLINGS BY TROOPS
· TROOPER KILLS COLLEAGUE

May 9: A Head constable of Paramilitary CRPF shot dead his colleague in Kishtwar district.Surinder Singh of 74 battalion of CRPF fired six rounds from his service weapon killing his colleague Vinay Singh in Shiva temple complex at Kishtwar.Officilas said, adding the provocation for resorting to firing by the trooper couldn’t be immediately ascertained. The accused they said has been arrested.
Meanwhile, an SPO was injured when he shot himself with his service weapon after being denied leave by his seniors in Jammu’s Udhampur district.
· ARMY JAWAN COMMITS SUICIDE

May 16: An army jawan allegedly committed suicide by hanging himself with a tree outside a military camp in Tanda area of Akhnoor on Jammu-Poonch highway. Police reports said that a jawan was found hanging with a tree by his collogues who later informed the higher authorities.

The deceased has been identified as Pramod Kumar of Uttar Pradesh who was posted with 32 field regiment. Official sources said Kumar was frustrated since last couple of days and he was found hanging with a tree outside the camp. Army has reportedly ordered court of inquiry into the death of the solider, sources added. Police have initiated inquest proceedings under section 174 CrPC.

· JAWAN KILLS COLLEAGUE
May 19: An Army jawan gunned down one of his colleague and seriously injured another with his service weapon at Mathyani Gala in Kalakote area of Rajouri distrct.The accused Army jawan was absconding. Official sources said Rifleman Kuldeep Raj son of Lekh Raj R/o Kishtwar, posted in 13 JAK LI and presently attached with 63 Rashtriya Rifles had a duel with his colleagues around 8.30 pm. He opened firing on his colleagues with his service weapon killing one and seriously injuring another.

The jawan then escaped from his unit. Army and police have launched a hunt to apprehend him. Army jawan killed in the firing has been identified as Ram Vrikish Yadav, Technical Havaldar Major of Ordnance Company, a resident of Bihar and the injured as Sudershan Pone of 15 Bihar.

WOMAN /CHILDREN KILLED

May 2: A 9-year old boy identified as Waseem Ahmad Najar son of Abdul Rashid Najar was killed and his two sisters Gulshana and Sara were injured when an explosive device they were fiddling with exploded at Trikanjan village in Uri. While playing they found an abandoned grenade and started fiddling with it. The explosive device went off with a big bang, causing on spot death of the boy and injuries to his two sisters.

May 8: Militants shot dead three persons, including a woman in Jammu’s Reasi district. A police spokesman said the gunmen barged into the house of Ahmed Din son of Kamdar Malik at Dewal Morha Bharmidhar in Reasi and fired indiscriminately killing Ajaz Ahmed and his father, Ahmed Din and a woman, Taja Begum, wife of Mushtaq Ahmed.

May 12: A 17-year-old girl identified as Amina, daughter of Muhammad Ibrahim was killed in an “exchange of fire” between militants and troops in Kishtwar district, officials said. However, locals denounced the official version and accused the army of gunning her down. ”Policeman and troopers of 26-Rashtriya Rifles cordoned off Kanow Patanzi village and launched searches, officials said.

May 22: A 3-year old girl identified as Rashida Bano, daughter of Noor Alam Gujjar was killed and his brother identified as Mohammad Saleem, 10, was critically injured when a stray mortar shell they were fiddling with exploded at Rajwar in border district of Kupwara. 

May 30: Two young women were found dead in mysterious circumstances in South Kashmir’s Shopian district triggering massive protests as their family and local people alleged that the duo were raped and murdered by the armed forces. The bodies of Neelofar Jan, 24, wife of Shakeel Ahmad Ahangar and Aasiya Jan, 17, daughter of Abdul Gani Ajangar, both residents of Bungam, were found near Rambiara nullah around 6 am at some distance from a CRPF camp.  
PROBES ORDERED IN THE MONTH OF MAY 2009
	Nature of crime 
	Victim’s details 
	Agency Involved
	Enquiry ordered by 
	Brief details of incidents


	Results of enquiries

	Custodial Killing
	Manzoor Ahmad Beigh, 40

S/o Late. Abdul Ahad Beigh

R/o Aluchi Bagh, Srinagar. 
	Special Operations Group of police
	May 18-09: Deputy Commissioner ordered inquiry into the killing. The Additional Commissioner, Srinagar, M.Y.Zargar has been appointed as Inquiry Officer and has been asked to submit report within a week. 

Police has launched inquest proceedings under section 174 CrPC.
	May 18-09: Manzoor Ahmad Beigh was killed allegedly in custody by Special Operations Group of police. 

Family of the victim claimed the torture marks were visible on Manzoor’s body. “There was a red mark around his throat. His chest was red and the arm pits were swollen. His eyes were closed forcibly with an adhesive tape,” his family said. 


	May 19-09: The government placed under suspension the police inspector posted at the SOG Cargo camp, in connection with the “custodial killing” of Manzoor Ahmed Beg, sources said.

“The inspector was suspended after preliminary investigations,” they said, adding, that Beg, a second-hand car dealer, had been summoned by the accused officer to SOG camp as he owed Rs 40,000 to some persons who had sought SOG’s intervention to realize the money. “After being summoned Beg was tortured to death in custody,” they added.

· Police arrested three persons in connection with the case. “The main accused is still absconding,” media quotes its sources.

May 25-09: The inquiry report regarding custodial killing of Manzoor Ahmed was submitted to Deputy Commissioner Meraj-u-Din Kakroo.The report was submitted by the inquiry officer M Y Zargar, additional deputy commission. 

Talking to media, Kakroo said, “This evening the inquiry team submitted the report. Tomorrow we will examine the report and go for further action accordingly." 

May 27-09: The magisterial inquiry into the alleged custodial death of Manzoor Ahmad has indicted SOG Inspector Khursheed Ahmad of “service misconduct” and advocated departmental proceedings against him. “The inquiry officer submitted the report on May 25,the report has concluded that the SOG Inspector has no jurisdiction to call the person in his camp and settle the case of civilian nature,” Deputy Commission Srinagar, Mehraj Ahmad Kakroo told media.

Stating that they have submitted report to Divisional Commissioner’s office, he said, “We would initiate departmental proceedings against the SOG Inspector.”Kakroo however said the criminal liability of the killing would be established once the final report of post mortem comes.

	Rape
	Aasiya, 17

D/o Abdul Gani Ahangar
R/o Bungam, Shopian 

Neelofar (24) w/o Shakeel Ahmad

R/o  Bungam, Shopian


	Troops
	May 31-09: The Government formed a special investigation team to investigate the alleged rape and murder of two women in Shopian. Divisional Commissioner Masood Samoon said that the investigation would be carried under the supervision of Deputy Superintendent of police.
June 1-09: Government appointed one man commission Justice Muzaffar Jan, who heads the one-man judicial commission set by Chief Minister Omar Abdullah to probe into the alleged rape and murder of two women in Shopian. 

Justice Jan is assisted by his three-member team of investigating officers, which include Chief Prosecuting Officer Abdul Majeed, Law Secretary Mukhtar Ahmad Wani and SSP Haseeb Mughal.

June 8-09:  Director General of Police, Kuldeep Khoda ordered constitution of a 3-member special investigation team for expeditious investigation of case FIR No 112/09 under section 376 RPC registered in police station Shopian. 


	May 30-09: Aasiya and Neelofar were found dead in mysterious circumstances in South Kashmir’s Shopian district triggering massive protests as their family and local people alleged that the duo were raped and murdered allegedly by the armed forces. Their bodies were found near Rambiara nullah around 6 am at some distance from a CRPF camp.

      According to locals, Aasiya and her pregnant sister-in-law, Neelofar were missing since May 29 after they had gone into their orchard at Degam, Batpora across the nullah. 
      On May 30 at 5 am, Shakeel said, he along with the police party again went in search of the duo. “I saw Neelofar’s body in the nullah and Aasiya’s body one kilometer away from her,” he said.

Describing as baseless and fabricated the police version that the bodies had no injury marks, Zahoor said Neelofar’s body had been kept in water near a boulder about 50 feet away and her body bore scratches on the right side. Her neck had visible strangulation marks and her clothes had been torn. The body of Aasiya was located in a stream flowing near Arahama shrine. She had a deep wound on her forehead and scratches on the right side of her face. He said she had no undergarments and he put his own shirt over her body.  
	


KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF MAY -2009

	DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	May 01
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 02
	-
	-
	1
	-

	May 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 04
	-
	1
	-
	1(Army porter)

	May 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 06
	1(SPO)
	-
	-
	-

	May 07
	-
	3
	1
	-

	May 08
	-
	-
	3
	-

	May 09
	1
	3
	1
	-

	May 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 12
	-
	-
	1
	-

	May 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 14
	-
	-
	-
	2(Unidentified dead bodies)

	May 15
	-
	-
	1
	1(Army porter)

	May 16
	2
	-
	-
	-

	May 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 18
	-
	-
	1
	-

	May 19
	 1
	-
	-
	-

	May 20
	-
	-
	-
	1(VDC Member)

	May 21
	-
	1
	-
	-

	May 22
	-
	3
	1
	-

	May 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 26
	-
	2
	1
	-

	May 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 29
	-
	-
	1
	-

	May 30
	-
	-
	2
	-

	May 31
	2
	-
	-
	1(Numberdar Village-Head)

	TOTAL
	7
	13
	14
	6

	                                                    IN TOTAL
	40 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	1 May 2009
	-
	-
	-
	1

	2 May 2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	7 May 2009
	1
	-
	-
	-

	8 May 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	9 May 2009
	1
	-
	-
	-

	12 May 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	18 May 2009
	1
	-
	-
	-

	22 May 2009
	-
	-
	1
	-

	28 May 2009
	-
	-
	-
	1

	30 May 2009
	-
	2
	-
	-

	     TOTAL
	3
	4
	2
	2


CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
May 1: At least 20 persons were injured, when police burst tear smoke shells and resorted to Baton-charge to disperse anti-poll protests at Batamaloo, Gowakadal, Nowakadal, Maisuma and Nawabazar and some adjoining areas. Three police personnel including a sub inspector, Irshad Ahmad of police station Batamaloo also sustained injures during stone pelting. Meanwhile, police claimed to have recovered body of a woman from Power Canal near Fraw, Gund in Ganderbal district. She has been identified as Naseema, 27, daughter of Dawood Gojar of Rayal Gund.The deceased was missing since April 29.

May 2: A 9-year old boy identified as Waseem Ahmad Najar son of Abdul Rashid Najar was killed and his two sisters Gulshana and Sara were injured when an explosive device they were fiddling with exploded at Trikanjan village in Uri.
May 3: At least 30 persons were injured in police action in downtown areas of Srinagar.
May 4: A Hizbul Mujahideen militant was killed and a special police officer injured in a gunfight in Jammu’s Doda distrct.The slain militant was identified as Dawood Ahmed Bhat alias Captain Tariq son of Gazi Bhat of Bhat Bazar of Kalotran in Gandoh.Meanwhile, an Army porter was killed under mysterious circumstances in north Kashmir, official source said.20-year-old Waseem Ahmad Bhat, working with 18 Kaman regiment at Baladul post in Gulmarg sector, died under mysterious circumstances. Police station Gulmarg has started proceedings in the case.
May 5: A shopkeeper identified as Sajad Ahmad Sofi of Kanikadal was critically injured when a tear gas shell fired by police hit him, blowing his chin away.
May 6: Unidentified gunmen abducted and killed an SPO, Khadim Hussain Shah, 28, son of Jamaat Ali Shah R/o Targain, Budhal, from Neel Dhok Badhal village in Doda by slitting his throat. His body was recovered by police from the forest area.

May 7: Security forces claimed to have killed two Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) militants, in the forests of Dessa, in the mountainous district of Doda of Jammu and Kashmir. The slain militants have been identified as Farooq Padar alias Ansari alias Amar alias Wasim, 24, son of Ghulam Qadir Padar resident of Bhata, and Sadiq Ahmed, son of Mohiuddin Rashid resident of Manjmi.In another incident, an unidentified militant was killed in a gunfight with troopers at Lolab in frontier district of Kupwara.Meanwhile,a civilian identified as Mohammad Sadiq son of Mohammad Khaliq was picked up by army personnel from Marmat,Doda and his dead body was recovered from the village. Locals allege that he was killed in custody; army on the other hand has denied the allegation and said that he was killed during encounter.
May 8: Militants shot dead three persons, including a father-son duo in Jammu’s Reasi district. A police spokesman said the gunmen barged into the house of Ahmed Din son of Kamdar Malik at Dewal Morha Bharmidhar in Reasi and fired indiscriminately killing Ajaz Ahmed and his father, Ahmed Din and a woman, Taja Begum, wife of Mushtaq Ahmed.
May 9: Police claimed to have killed an unidentified militant at Akhal village Kangan.Meanwhile,two militants including a divisional commander of Lashkar-e-Toiba were killed while an army jawan also sustained injuries in an encounter between militants and security forces at Dhar Bighan in hilly district of Doda.The slain militants have been identified as divisional commander Abu Sumama,a Pak national and his associate as Barkat Ali Naik alias Yasir son of Abdul Jabbar Naik resident of Chitran.In another incident, a Head Constable of Paramilitary CRPF shot dead his colleague in Kishtwar district. The deceased jawan has been identified as Vinay Singh. Meanwhile, Manga Sheikh, 45, of Dhani, a village near Line of Control (LoC),Karnah died under mysterious circumstances in the headquarters of Border Security Force (BSF) Tanghdar. Manga Sheikh He was at his shop when two men, Muhammad Shafi of Hajitra and Alam-Din of Sudhpora, working for 67 battalion of BSF, came to the shop and asked him to accompany them to Tangdhar.

May 10: At least 10 persons were injured, when police burst smoke shells and resorted to heavy lathi charge to disperse pro-freedom and anti-poll protest demonstrations at Kawdara.
May 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

May 12: A 17-year-old girl identified as Amina, daughter of Muhammad Ibrahim was killed in an “exchange of fire” between militants and troopers of 26-Rashtriya Rifles in Kishtwar district. However, locals denounced the official version and accused the army of gunning her down.

May 13: At least nine persons including six policemen sustained injuries when people protested against forced voting in Seelu village. Meanwhile, two young students were badly injured in clashes between protestors and CRPF in Dooru.They were identified as Mufeed Ahmad Shah, 19, son of Bashir Ahmad Shah and Tufail Ahmad Dar, 18, 12th class student, son of Khazir Muhammad Dar.Mufeed Ahmad has been hit by a bullet in the head, while as, Tufail was hit by a bullet in the wrist. The injury is serious and the boy might have to lose his hand.

May 14: Police claimed to have recovered two bodies at different places in Kashmir valley. Body of 24-year-old Nazir Ahmad Bhat was recovered from the woods at Kokerbugh Khag, Budgam, while the body of a youth, Muhammad Ayub Wani was fished out from Dal Lake. Police have registered cases and started proceedings.

May 15: Unidentified gunmen entered the house of Reyaz Ahmad Mir, father of two in Watersar village of Handwara on May 14.The gunmen took along Reyaz and his body was found out side the Shadipora middle school today morning. He was working as army porter. Police has registered a case.Meanwhile, police recovered the head of a forest guard, Ghulam Mohiudin Sheikh, of Hangal, from Laribal forests in Handwara.The deceased had been kidnapped by unidentified gunmen from his home on May 14.In another incident, at least 30 persons were injured in old city when police fired teargas shells and used batons to disperse protesters demanding release of Kashmiri prisoners.
May 16: An army jawan identified as Pramod Kumar of Uttar Pradesh allegedly committed suicide by hanging himself with a tree outside a military camp in Tanda area of Akhnoor on Jammu-Poonch highway. He was posted with 32 field regiment. Police have initiated inquest proceedings under section 174 CrPC.Meanwhile, a Special Police Officer (SPO) was killed during a gunfight at Sumbal Sonawari.The deceased SPO has been identified as Mustafa Chechi, belt number 100/G.

May 17: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
May 18: Manzoor Ahmad Beigh, 40, son of Late Abdul Ahad Beigh of Aluchi Bagh was allegedly killed in custody by Special Operations Group of Jammu and Kashmir police.

May 19: An Army jawan identified as Kuldeep Raj gunned down one of his colleague Ram Vrikish Yadav and seriously injured another with his service weapon at Mathyani Gala in Kalakote area of Rajouri district. Meanwhile, at least 15 protestors were injured in police action at Alucha Bagh and Maisuma when people were protesting the alleged custodial death of Manzoor Ahmad Beigh by SOG of personnel on May 18.

May 20: A Village Defence Committee personnel committed suicide by shooting himself in Kishtwar.The VDC member Jafaram son of Haem Raj shot himself by his service rifle which resulted in his on the spot death.
May 21: Police claimed to have killed a battalion commander of Hizbul-Mujahideen in south Kashmir’s Kulgam distrct.The slain militant has been identified as Ahmad Din, alias Wasim of Shivras Gool Gulab Garh.
May 22: Army claimed to have killed three unidentified militants in frontier district of Kupwara.Meanwhile, a 3-year old girl identified as Rashida Bano, daughter of Noor Alam Gujjar was killed and his brother identified as Mohammad Saleem, 10, was critically injured when a stray mortar shell they were fiddling with exploded at Rajwar in border district of Kupwara.

May 23: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
May 24: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
May 25: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
May 26: Arif Ayub, 16, of Ganderpora Eidgah who was critically injured on May 22, when a tear gas shell fired by troopers hit him in the head at Rajouri Kadal during pro-freedom demonstrations succumbed to his injuries at the SK Institute of Medical Sciences. Meanwhile, two militants of Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) outfit including 'Tehsil Commander' were killed in separate encounters in Kishtwar and Doda distrct.The slain militants have been identified as Tehsil Commander of HM,Ghulam Hussain alias Qari of Qadarana, Nowapachi village and Irfan Ahmed son of Abdul Latief of Talogana Chilli.

May 27: At least 24 persons including 10 policemen were injured, when security forces burst teargas shells and resorted to lathi charge on protesters in some downtown areas. The people were protesting against the killing of Arif Ayub.They were demanding stern punishment against the policemen responsible for killing of Arif.

May 28: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

May 29: An auto driver identified as Mohammad Shaban Gora, son of Abdul Ahad Gora of Anzimarg, Sikh Bagh, Lal Bazar was shot at and killed by unidentified gunman in Lal Bazar area. At least 22 persons including six policemen were injured in many downtown areas when police and Para military forces opened fire in air, burst teargas shells and resorted to heavy lathi charge on people protesting to the killing of Arif Ayub.

May 30: Two young women were found dead in mysterious circumstances in South Kashmir’s Shopian district triggering massive protests as their family and local people alleged that the duo were raped and murdered by the armed forces. The bodies of Neelofar Jan, 24, wife of Shakeel Ahmad Ahangar and Aasiya Jan, 17, daughter of Abdul Gani Ajangar, both residents of Bungam, were found near Rambiara nullah around 6 am at some distance from a CRPF camp.

May 31: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a Special Police Officer in Sopore. The SPO has been identified as Fayaz Ahmad Bhat son of Ali Bhat of Bomai, Sopore. Meanwhile, an army trooper was killed and another critically injured when militants ambushed a 1st Para and 7-Para personnel at Panar forest in North Kashmir district of Bandipora during a search operation. The deceased trooper was identified as Lance Naik Dil Kumar Roy of 1st Para No.9423819L.In another incident; unidentified gunmen also shot dead a numberdar (village head) of village Dananad Nasarpora, Kellar in Shopian district. The deceased has been identified as Saif-ud-Din son of Ghulam Muhammad.



Published by:


PUBLIC COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS








The Bund, Amira Kadal, Srinagar, Jammu and Kashmir


Tel: 91-194-2482820        


E-Mail: p_imroz@yahoo.co.in


Web: www.jkccs.org








The Informative Missive


For One Year Subscription





                     India 		                 	          Overseas 





Individuals: 				        Rs. 100 /- 				  US $ 30





Institutions:				        Rs. 500 /- 				   US $ 100





On May 22, the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) took suo moto cognizance of killing of Manzoor Ahmad by SOG personnel. “The alleged facts of inhuman treatment and torture inflicted by SOG personnel amounts to serious violation of human rights in terms of principles laid down by the Supreme Court of India,” the Commission said. 


		The commission directed the DGP and Divisional Commissioner of Kashmir to furnish their detailed reports in the case to the Commissioner on priority. 


On May 25, the enquiry report was submitted to deputy commissioner Mehraj-ud-Din Kakroo. The report was submitted by the inquiry officer MY Zargar, additional deputy commissioner.      


On May 27, the magisterial inquiry indicted SOG Inspector Khursheed Ahmad of “service misconduct” and advocated departmental proceedings against him. 


May 29, the family of Manzoor contested the magisterial inquiry report that he died a natural death. 
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